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                             USA Technologies, Inc. 
                                 Balance Sheets 
 
 
                                                                                            March 31,                 June 30, 
                                                                                              2002                      2001 
                                                                                          ------------             ------------ 
                                                                                           (Unaudited)                (Note 2) 
                                                                                                              
Assets 
Current assets: 
    Cash and cash equivalents                                                             $  1,328,455             $    817,570 
    Accounts receivable                                                                        237,047                   64,752 
    Inventory                                                                                  876,765                  560,410 
    Prepaid expenses and other current assets                                                  899,214                  428,825 
    Subscriptions receivable                                                                    79,237                   29,000 
                                                                                          ------------             ------------ 
Total current assets                                                                         3,420,718                1,900,557 
 
Property and equipment, net of accumulated 
  depreciation of $916,725 at March 31, 2002 
  and $672,913 at June 30, 2001                                                                576,939                  761,324 
Software development costs                                                                   5,326,186                3,087,415 
Other assets                                                                                   408,215                  430,765 
                                                                                          ------------             ------------ 
Total assets                                                                              $  9,732,058             $  6,180,061 
                                                                                          ============             ============ 
 
Liabilities and shareholders' equity (deficit) 
Current liabilities: 
    Accounts payable                                                                      $  2,118,063             $  2,607,570 
    Accrued expenses                                                                         1,346,017                1,355,595 
    Equipment line of credit                                                                    34,632                   45,785 
    Current obligations under convertible Senior Notes                                            --                    211,704 
    Current obligations under capital leases                                                    58,113                   70,446 
                                                                                          ------------             ------------ 
Total current liabilities                                                                    3,556,825                4,291,100 
 
Convertible Senior Notes, less current portion                                               4,590,963                4,236,281 
Convertible Debenture, less current portion                                                     51,667                     -- 
Obligations under capital leases, less current portion                                          14,407                   53,577 
                                                                                          ------------             ------------ 
Total liabilities                                                                            8,213,862                8,580,958 
 
Shareholders' equity (deficit): 
   Preferred Stock, no par value: 
     Series A Convertible Preferred: 
        Authorized shares - 1,800,000; issued and outstanding shares - 540,789 
        at March 31, 2002 (unaudited) and 555,284 at 
        June 30, 2001 (liquidation preference of $10,703,531 at 
        March 31, 2002)                                                                      3,830,628                3,933,253 
   Common Stock, no par value: 
     Authorized shares - 85,000,000 
     Issued and outstanding shares - 39,787,136 at 
        March 31, 2002 (unaudited) and 21,450,755 
        at June 30, 2001                                                                    45,252,955               32,977,922 
   Deferred compensation                                                                       (25,750)                (103,000)
   Accumulated deficit                                                                     (47,539,637)             (39,209,072)
                                                                                          ------------             ------------ 
Total shareholders' equity (deficit)                                                         1,518,196               (2,400,897)
                                                                                          ------------             ------------ 
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity (deficit)                                      $  9,732,058             $  6,180,061 
                                                                                          ============             ============ 
 
 
See accompanying notes. 
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                             USA Technologies, Inc. 
                            Statements of Operations 
                                   (Unaudited) 
 
 
                                                      Three months ended                    Nine months ended 
                                                            March 31,                             March 31, 
                                                   2002               2001                2002              2001 
                                               -------------------------------       ------------------------------- 
                                                                                             
Revenues: 
    Equipment sales                            $    233,875       $    189,410       $    598,980       $    526,450 
    License and transaction fees                    193,768            152,298            519,291            480,259 
                                               ------------       ------------       ------------       ------------ 
Total revenues                                      427,643            341,708          1,118,271          1,006,709 
 
Operating expenses: 
    Cost of sales                                   201,774            216,617            611,805            602,794 
    General and administrative                    1,708,609          1,646,232          4,308,049          3,678,308 
    Compensation                                  1,426,173            732,027          3,155,986          1,809,502 
    Depreciation                                     80,809             33,583            243,812            100,755 
                                               ------------       ------------       ------------       ------------ 
Total operating expenses                          3,417,365          2,628,459          8,319,652          6,191,359 
                                               ------------       ------------       ------------       ------------ 
                                                 (2,989,722)        (2,286,751)        (7,201,381)        (5,184,650) 
Other income (expense): 
    Interest income                                   4,197              7,010             10,464             53,944 
    Interest expense 
        Coupon or stated rate                      (257,176)          (246,382)          (594,174)          (502,848) 
        Non-cash amortization of 
          debt discount                            (364,974)           (54,332)          (890,062)          (523,252) 
        Less: amount capitalized                    145,492             55,718            492,658            125,387 
                                               ------------       ------------       ------------       ------------ 
 
    Total interest expense                         (476,658)          (244,996)          (991,578)          (900,713) 
                                               ------------       ------------       ------------       ------------ 
Total other income (expense)                       (472,461)          (237,986)          (981,114)          (846,769) 
                                               ------------       ------------       ------------       ------------ 
Loss before extraordinary item and 
  cumulative effect of accounting change         (3,462,183)        (2,524,737)        (8,182,495)        (6,031,419) 
Extraordinary loss on exchange of debt                   --                 --                 --           (863,000) 
                                               ------------       ------------       ------------       ------------ 
Loss before cumulative effect of 
  accounting change                              (3,462,183)        (2,524,737)        (8,182,495)        (6,894,419) 
Cumulative effect of accounting change                   --                 --                 --           (821,000) 
                                               ------------       ------------       ------------       ------------ 
Net loss                                         (3,462,183)        (2,524,737)        (8,182,495)        (7,715,419) 
Cumulative preferred dividends                     (409,342)          (414,708)          (822,561)          (836,541) 
                                               ------------       ------------       ------------       ------------ 
Loss applicable to common shares               $ (3,871,525)      $ (2,939,445)      $ (9,005,056)      $ (8,551,960) 
                                               ------------       ------------       ------------       ------------ 
Loss per common share (basic and diluted)      $      (0.11)      $      (0.17)      $      (0.30)      $      (0.54) 
                                               ===============================       =============================== 
Weighted average number of common shares 
outstanding (basic and diluted)                  35,931,050         17,114,702         30,186,045         15,702,556 
                                               ===============================       =============================== 
 
 See accompanying notes. 
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                             USA Technologies, Inc. 
                   Statement of Shareholders' Equity (Deficit) 
                                   (Unaudited) 
 
 
                                                 Series A 
                                               Convertible 
                                                Preferred        Common         Deferred       Accumulated 
                                                  Stock           Stock       Compensation       Deficit          Total 
                                              ------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
                                                                                                 
Balance, June 30, 2001                         $  3,933,253     $32,977,922   $    (103,000) $  (39,209,072)   $  (2,400,897) 
Conversion of 14,495 shares of Preferred 
   Stock to 14,495 shares of Common Stock          (102,625)        102,625               -               -                - 
Conversion of $148,070 of cumulative 
   preferred dividends into 14,807 shares of 
   Common Stock at $10.00 per share                       -         148,070               -        (148,070)               - 
Issuance of 2,381,834 shares of Common Stock 
   in exchange for professional services                  -       1,214,714               -               -        1,214,714 
Issuance of 500,000 Common Stock Warrants in 
   exchange for professional services                     -         115,000               -               -          115,000 
Issuance of 200,000 Common Stock Options in 
   exchange for professional services                     -          66,000               -               -           66,000 
Issuance of 498,000 shares of Common Stock 
   from the conversion of $622,500 of the 
   2000 12% Senior Notes at $1.25 per share               -         622,500               -               -          622,500 
Exercise of 30,000 Common Stock warrants at 
   $1.00 per share                                        -          30,000               -               -           30,000 
Exercise of 26,667 Common Stock warrants at 
   $.50 per share                                         -          13,334               -               -           13,334 
Exercise of 1,472,694 Common Stock warrants 
   at $.10 per share                                      -         147,270               -               -          147,270 
Compensation expense related to deferred 
   stock awards                                           -               -          77,250               -           77,250 
Exercise of 500,000 Common Stock warrants at 
   $.29 per share, net of offering costs                  -         142,900               -               -          142,900 
Issuance of 271,950 shares of Common 
   Stock from the conversion of $70,000 of 
   9-3/4% debentures, and the related 
   exercise of Common Stock warrants at 
   $.2574 per share to purchase 2,719,500 
   shares of Common Stock, net of fees of 
   $15,750                                                -         754,250               -               -          754,250 
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                             USA Technologies, Inc. 
                   Statement of Shareholders' Equity (Deficit) 
                                   (Unaudited) 
 
 
 
 
                                                 Series A 
                                               Convertible 
                                                Preferred        Common         Deferred       Accumulated 
                                                  Stock           Stock       Compensation       Deficit          Total 
                                              ------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
                                                                                                 
Issuance of 4,726,040 shares of Common 
   Stock in connection with the 2001-B 
   Private Placement, net of offering costs 
   of $108,630                                            -       2,747,913              -               -         2,747,913 
Issuance of 4,212,350 shares of Common Stock in 
   connection with the 2001-C Private 
   Placement, net of offering costs of 
   $226,567                                               -       1,838,214              -               -         1,838,214 
Issuance of 373,549 shares of Common Stock 
   in lieu of cash payment for interest on 
   the 2000 12% Convertible Senior Note 
   Offering                                               -         173,217              -               -           173,217 
Issuance of 1,080,000 shares of Common Stock 
   to Officers as compensation                            -         486,000              -               -           486,000 
Debt discount relating to beneficial 
   conversion feature on the 2001 12% Senior 
   Notes                                                  -       3,424,266              -               -         3,424,266 
Debt discount relating to beneficial 
   conversion feature on the $225,000, 
    9-3/4% Convertible Debenture                          -         225,000              -               -           225,000 
Other                                                     -          23,760              -               -            23,760 
Net loss                                                  -               -              -      (8,182,495)       (8,182,495) 
                                              ------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Balance, March 31, 2002                        $  3,830,628    $ 45,252,955   $    (25,750)  $ (47,539,637)     $  1,518,196 
                                              =============================================================================== 
 
 
 
See accompanying notes. 
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                             USA Technologies, Inc. 
                             Statement of Cash Flows 
                                   (Unaudited) 
 
 
                                                                                          Nine months ended March 31, 
                                                                                           2002                  2001 
                                                                                      ---------------------------------- 
                                                                                                        
Operating activities 
Net loss                                                                              $(8,182,495)           $(6,226,807) 
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities: 
       Services and compensation paid through issuance of Common 
           Stock Warrants and  shares of Common Stock                                   3,093,291                 97,525 
       Issuance of Common Stock in lieu of cash payments for 
           interest on Senior Note                                                        173,217                 53,470 
       Interest/amortization relating to Senior Note Offering                             890,062                674,612 
       Depreciation                                                                       243,812                137,722 
       Provision for allowance for uncollectible accounts                                   3,694                 31,984 
       Changes in operating assets and liabilities: 
          Accounts receivable                                                            (175,989)               347,739 
          Inventory                                                                      (316,355)              (218,758) 
          Prepaid expenses, deposits, and other assets                                    418,646                427,463 
          Accounts payable                                                               (489,507)               743,126 
          Accrued expenses                                                                 (9,578)               388,887 
                                                                                      ---------------------------------- 
Net cash used in operating activities                                                  (4,351,202)            (3,543,037) 
 
Investing activities 
Purchase of property and equipment                                                        (59,427)              (260,338) 
Increase in software development costs                                                 (2,238,771)            (1,560,511) 
                                                                                      ---------------------------------- 
Net cash used in investing activities                                                  (2,298,198)            (1,820,849) 
 
Financing activities 
Net proceeds from issuance of Common Stock and 
    exercise of Common Stock warrants                                                   3,626,553              2,849,751 
Net proceeds from issuance of Senior Notes and Convertibe Debenture                     3,812,388              1,147,026 
Net repayment of equipment line of credit                                                 (11,153)              (130,846) 
Repayment of 1999 Convertible Senior Notes                                               (240,000)                    -- 
Payment of deferred financing costs                                                            --                (49,227) 
Collection of subscriptions receivable                                                     24,000                 12,199 
Repayment of principal on capital lease obligations                                       (51,503)               (23,106) 
                                                                                      ---------------------------------- 
Net cash provided by financing activities                                               7,160,285              3,805,797 
                                                                                      ---------------------------------- 
 
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents                                      510,885             (1,558,089) 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period                                          817,570              1,859,360 
                                                                                      ---------------------------------- 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period                                            $ 1,328,455            $   301,271 
                                                                                      ================================== 
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information: 
     Transfer of inventory to property and equipment                                  $        --            $    41,818 
                                                                                      ================================== 
     Conversion of Convertible Preferred Stock to Common Stock                        $   102,625            $   107,333 
                                                                                      ================================== 
     Conversion of Convertible Preferred Dividends to Common Stock                    $   148,070            $   120,030 
                                                                                      ================================== 
     Conversion of Senior Notes to Common Stock                                       $   622,500            $     7,482 
                                                                                      ================================== 
     Issuance of Common Stock in connection with 2000 Senior Note Offering            $        --            $ 1,389,718 
                                                                                      ================================== 
     Cash paid for interest                                                           $   420,959            $   368,019 
                                                                                      ================================== 
     Subscriptions receivable outstanding                                             $    79,237            $ 1,727,500 
                                                                                      ================================== 
     Capital lease obligations                                                        $        --            $   118,207 
                                                                                      ================================== 
 
 
See accompanying notes. 
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                             USA TECHNOLOGIES, INC. 
                    NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited) 
 
 
1.       Business 
 
         USA Technologies, Inc. provides unattended, cashless payment / control 
systems and associated network and financial services for the copy, fax, debit 
card, smart card, vending, laundry and personal computer industries. The 
Company's devices make available credit and debit card and other payment methods 
in connection with the sale of a variety of products and services. Customers are 
located primarily in the continental United States. The Company also has 
installations in Alaska, Hawaii, Puerto Rico, Canada and Europe. Sample 
customers include major hotel chains, consumer package goods companies, 
information technology companies, and vending operators. Distribution and 
strategic partners include International Business Machines, Marconi plc., 
DoubleClick, Xerox, MEI (Mars Electronics), and Sprint. Manufacturing partners 
include RadiSys and Masterwork Electronics. The Company generates its revenues 
from the direct sale of its control systems and the resale of configured 
business equipment utilizing its control systems, as well as by network fees and 
a percentage of the monies generated from all credit card transactions conducted 
through its control systems. 
 
         The Company has developed and commenced shipping of its next generation 
of cashless control/payment systems, network and financial services 
(e-Port(TM)). Current e-Port(TM) shipments include capabilities for credit card 
processing, tracking of vending inventory, wireless communication and reporting 
of this inventory data to a monitoring station. New networking and financial 
services capabilities currently being delivered via USALive(TM) to customers 
include electronic transfer of funds and transaction reports to customers. e- 
Port(TM) terminal and USALive network capabilities currently in development and 
testing and targeted for shipment to certain customers during the fourth quarter 
of fiscal 2002 include interactive advertising, web based transaction reporting 
and terminal management, and acceptance of other forms of cashless payment 
systems. 
 
         At March 31, 2002, the Company had a total of 1,279 terminals shipped 
and installed at various hotels, libraries, vending machines, airports, theme 
parks, retail locations and business/industry locations located throughout the 
United States and Canada. 
 
2.       Accounting Policies 
 
         Interim Financial Information 
 
         The accompanying unaudited condensed financial statements have been 
prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles for interim 
financial information and with the instructions to Form 10-QSB. Accordingly, 
they do not include all of the information and footnotes required by generally 
accepted accounting principles for complete financial statements. In the opinion 
of management, all adjustments (consisting of normal recurring accruals) 
considered necessary have been included. Operating results for the three and 
nine month periods ended March 31, 2002 are not necessarily indicative of the 
results that may be expected for the year ending June 30, 2002. The balance 
sheet at June 30, 2001 has been derived from the audited financial statements at 
that date but does not include all of the information and footnotes required by 
generally accepted accounting principles for complete financial statements. 
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         For further information, refer to the financial statements and 
footnotes thereto included in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-KSB for the 
year ended June 30, 2001. 
 
         Use of Estimates 
 
         The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in 
the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ 
from those estimates. 
 
         Cash Equivalents 
 
         Cash equivalents represent all highly liquid investments with original 
maturities of three months or less. Cash equivalents are comprised of a money 
market fund and certificates of deposit. 
 
         Inventory 
 
         Inventory is stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out method) 
or market. 
 
         Property and Equipment 
 
         Property and equipment are recorded at cost. The straight-line method 
of depreciation is used over the estimated useful lives of the related assets. 
 
         Revenue Recognition 
 
         Revenue from the sale of equipment is recognized upon installation and 
customer acceptance of the related equipment. License fee revenue (including 
transaction processing revenue) is recognized upon the usage of the Company's 
credit card activated control systems. 
 
         Software Development Costs 
 
         The Company capitalizes software development costs that are incurred 
subsequent to the establishment of the software's technological feasibility and 
up to the product's availability for general release to the Company's customers. 
Through March 31, 2002, the Company has capitalized approximately $5.3 million 
of such costs relating to the development of the e-Port(TM) network. 
Amortization of such capitalized costs will be the greater of the amount 
computed using (i) the ratio that current gross revenues for a product bear to 
the total of current and anticipated future gross revenues of that product or 
(ii) the straight line method over the remaining estimated economic life of the 
product, including the period being reported on. Amortization of such costs will 
commence when the software becomes available for general release and use by the 
Company's customers which is expected to occur in the final quarter of fiscal 
2002. The Company anticipates capitalization of an additional $400,000 during 
the final quarter of fiscal 2002 prior to the anticipated release of the basic 
networked, internet capable e-Port(TM) to the marketplace. In the alternative, 
management may determine that the capitalized software development costs are not 
recorded at net realizable value and a charge to earnings may be taken by the 
Company for all or a portion of these capitalized costs during the fourth 
quarter of fiscal year 2002. All costs incurred in the research and development 
of new software and costs incurred prior to the establishment of technological 
feasibility (in fiscal year 2000) have been expensed as incurred. 
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         Loss Per Common Share 
 
         Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing income (loss) 
applicable to common shares by the weighted average common shares outstanding 
for the period. Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing income 
(loss) applicable to common shares by the weighted average common shares 
outstanding for the period plus the dilutive effect (unless such effect is 
anti-dilutive) of equity instruments. No exercise of stock options, purchase 
rights, stock purchase warrants, or the conversion of senior notes, debentures, 
preferred stock, or cumulative preferred dividends was assumed for all periods 
presented because the assumed exercise of these securities would be 
antidilutive. 
 
         Reclassification 
 
         During April 2001, the Company granted 6,000,000 fully vested options 
to a distributor in connection with the signing of a five-year distribution 
agreement. The estimated fair value of the options was $420,000 and is being 
recorded as a reduction of revenues or as selling, general, and administrative 
expenses, to the extent revenues have not been earned, over the term of the 
distribution agreement. Prior to December 31, 2001, the unamortized balance was 
classified as a contra-equity account. Pursuant to EITF 00-18, the Company has 
presented the unamortized balance as an other asset on the March 31, 2002 
balance sheet and has reclassified the June 30, 2001 balance sheet to be 
consistent with the current period presentation. 
 
 
3.       Financing Activities 
 
         During the quarter ended December 31, 2001, the Company commenced a 
$2,500,000 private placement offering (the "2001-D" offering later increased to 
$6,500,000 due to oversubscription), consisting of 12% Convertible Senior Notes 
("Notes") due December 31, 2004. Each $10,000 Note is convertible into Common 
Stock at $.40 per share, and interest is payable quarterly. Certain stockholders 
of the Company, who received warrants to purchase common stock of the Company as 
a part of earlier private placements, received an extension of the termination 
date and a reduction of the exercise price of a portion of their warrants if 
they invested in the 2001-D offering. The warrants were scheduled to expire by 
December 31, 2001 or March 2002 (according to their original terms) at $.50 and 
if the warrant holder participated in the 2001-D offering, the warrants become 
exercisable at $.10 through December 31, 2002. The fair value of the warrants on 
the date of extension of $3,424,266 has been recorded as equity, and this debt 
discount is being amortized to interest expense through the maturity date of the 
Notes. The 2001-D offering has been extended by the Company to close no later 
than May 31, 2002. As of March 31, 2002, gross proceeds of $3,618,985 had been 
deposited, and additional signed subscription documents for $79,237 had been 
received, for which the Company received the cash subsequent to March 31, 2002. 
 
         During the nine months ended March 31, 2002, the Company completed its 
2001-C offering and issued 4,212,350 shares of Common Stock for $829,342 of net 
cash proceeds and $1,008,872 in exchange for services. For each share, the 
Company issued a Common Stock purchase warrant to purchase one share of 
restricted Common Stock for $0.50 per share at any time through May 31, 2002. 
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         During the quarter ended September 30, 2001, the Company issued to a 
private investment company a $225,000 9-3/4% Convertible Debenture with a 
maturity date two years following issuance. The debenture may be converted into 
Common Stock at any time prior to maturity at a price per share equal to the 
lower of $1.00 or 80% of the lowest market price during the twenty trading days 
immediately prior to the conversion. In December 2001, the twenty trading days 
was amended to be two hundred seventy calendar days prior to any conversion. In 
addition, the investor is entitled to receive additional Common Stock purchase 
warrants equal to ten times the number of Common shares converted from the 
debenture. The investor is also entitled to convert up to 6% of the original 
value of the debentures each month starting also during August of 2001, on a 
cumulative basis. Due to the significance of the beneficial conversion feature 
associated with this instrument, the entire amount of the proceeds of $225,000 
has been allocated to equity. This discount to the face value of the debt is 
being amortized to interest expense over the term of the debt. During the nine 
months ended March 31, 2002, the investment company converted $70,000 of these 
debentures, resulting in issuance of 271,950 shares of Common Stock, and 
exercised warrants resulting in the issuance of 2,719,500 shares of Common Stock 
and generating net cash proceeds of $684,250. 
 
4.       Stock Options, Warrants, and Purchase Rights 
 
         As of March 31, 2002, there were 3,356,667 options outstanding to 
purchase Common Stock at exercise prices ranging from $0.50 to $5.00 per share, 
of which 3,026,668 were vested; and there were 9,931,448 fully vested warrants 
to purchase Common Stock at exercise prices ranging from $0.10 to $4.00 per 
share. Subsequent to March 31, 2002, the Company cancelled and converted 
1,080,000 of fully vested options held by executive officers into common stock. 
The Company also issued 730,000 shares of common stock to consultants subsequent 
to March 31, 2002. 
 
5.       Senior Note Offerings 
 
         During the quarter ended December 31, 2000, the Company exchanged a 
new debt instrument (2000 Senior Note) for an existing debt instrument (1999 
Senior Note). The exchange of the 1999 Senior Notes to the 2000 Senior Notes was 
determined to be a substantial modification of the terms of the original debt 
instrument and, accordingly, the Company wrote-off the unamortized debt discount 
and other issuance costs associated with the exchange of the 1999 Senior Notes 
in the amount of $863,000. Such amount has been reported as a non-cash 
extraordinary item in the fiscal year 2001 statement of operations. 
 
 
6.       Cumulative Effect of Accounting Change 
 
         During fiscal year 1999, the Company issued $4,618,000 (as adjusted) of 
$10,000 principal amount of Senior Notes. The Notes also included detachable 
equity instruments. During October 1999, the Company added a conversion feature 
to the Senior Notes whereby the Senior Notes were immediately convertible into 
Common Stock at $2.50 per share at the option of the holder. At the time of the 
addition of the conversion feature, the Company determined that, based on the 
fair value of the Company's Common Stock and specified conversion prices, and, 
in accordance with the then applicable accounting pronouncements, these Senior 
Notes did not contain an embedded conversion feature. 
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         In November 2000, the Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) of the 
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) reached a consensus on Issue 00-27, 
Application of EITF Issue 98-5, "Accounting for Convertible Securities with 
Beneficial Conversion Features or Contingently Adjustable Conversion Ratios to 
Certain Convertible Instruments," whereby it was concluded that an issuer should 
calculate the intrinsic value of a conversion option using the effective 
conversion price, based on the proceeds received allocated to the convertible 
instrument instead of the specified conversion prices in the instrument. Issue 
00-27 requires companies to apply the prescribed methodology for computing the 
beneficial conversion feature of convertible securities through a cumulative 
catch-up accounting change (in the quarter that includes November 2000) for any 
such security issued after May 20, 1999, the effective date of EITF 98-5. 
Accordingly, the Company recorded a one-time, non-cash charge of $821,000 during 
the quarter ended December 31, 2000 to record the cumulative effect of an 
accounting change as required by the EITF. 
 
         The effect of these changes are reflected in the Statement of 
Operations in the nine month period ended March 31, 2001. 
 
 
7.       Subsequent Events 
 
         On May 14, 2002, USA Acquisition Corp., a wholly-owned subsidiary of 
the Company merged with and into Stitch Networks Corporation pursuant to an 
Agreement and Plan of Merger by and among the Company, USA Acquisition Corp., 
Stitch and the stockholders of Stitch dated April 10, 2002. At the close of the 
transaction, Stitch became a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. The 
stockholders of Stitch were David H. Goodman, Pennsylvania Early Stage Partners, 
L.P., and Maytag Holdings, Inc. 
 
         Stitch, located in Kennett Square, Pennsylvania, is a leading provider 
of wireless remote monitoring, and cashless and mobile commerce solutions. Two 
significant Stitch investors, Maytag Holdings, Inc. and Pennsylvania Early Stage 
Partners, L.P., have become shareholders of the Company. Maytag invested $10 
million in Stitch, and Pennsylvania Early Stage Partners invested $2 million. 
 
         All of the outstanding shares of stock of Stitch were converted into 
the right to receive an aggregate of 22,762,341 shares of Common Stock and 
warrants to purchase up to 7,587,447 shares of Common Stock at $.40 per share at 
any time through June 30, 2002. Additionally, the Company assumed outstanding 
Stitch stock options which were converted into options to purchase an aggregate 
of 2,475,318 shares of Common Stock at $.165 per share at any time prior to May 
14, 2007 and warrants identical to those issued to the stockholders to purchase 
up to 412,553 shares of Common Stock. The exchange rate used to convert the 
capital stock and options of Stitch into Common Stock, warrants and options of 
the Company was determined as the result of an arms length negotiation. Under 
its investment banking contract, Technology Partners (Holdings) LLC is entitled 
to receive an aggregate of 875,000 shares of Common Stock from the Company in 
payment for its services rendered in connection with the Stitch transaction. 
 
         The March 15, 2002 letter of intent had originally provided for the 
issuance of 24,000,000 shares of Common Stock to the Stitch stockholders and 
option holders. The final merger agreement provided that the Stitch stockholders 
would receive only 22,762,341 shares and the Stitch option holders would not 
receive any shares but options to purchase up to 2,475,318 shares at one-half of 
the closing market price of the shares. 
 
         Effective May 14, 2002, the Board of Directors of the Company was 
increased to ten members with the three resulting vacancies to be filled with 
the nominees of Stitch. 
 
         The Stitch financial statements and any pro forma financial information 
required to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission under Item 7 of 
Form 8-K shall be filed by the Company no later than July 29, 2002. 
 
         On May 14, 2002, at a special meeting of shareholders, the Company's 
shareholders approved an increase in the number of authorized shares of the 
Company's Common Stock from 85,000,000 to 150,000,000 and approved an increase 
in the size of the Board of Directors to ten members. 
 
 
Item 2.  Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and 
         Results of Operations. 
 
Forward Looking Statements 
 
         This Form 10-QSB contains certain forward looking statements regarding, 
among other things, the anticipated financial and operating results of the 
Company. For this purpose, forward looking statements are any statements 
contained herein that are not statements of historical fact and include, but are 
not limited to, those preceded by or that include the words, "believes," 
"expects," "anticipates," or similar expressions. Those statements are subject 
to known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that could cause the 
actual results to differ materially from those contemplated by the statements. 
The forward looking information is based on various factors and was derived 
using numerous assumptions. Important factors that could cause the Company's 
actual results to differ materially from those projected, include, for example 
(i) the ability of the Company to generate sufficient sales to generate 
operating profits, or to sell products at a profit, (ii) the ability of the 
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Company to raise funds in the future through sales of securities, including but 
not limited to the exercise of outstanding options and warrants, (iii) whether 
the Company is able to enter into binding agreements with third parties to 
assist in product or network development, (iv) the ability of the Company to 
commercialize its developmental products including the e-Port(TM), or if 
actually commercialized, to obtain commercial acceptance thereof, (v) the 
ability of the Company to compete with its competitors to obtain market share, 
(vi) the ability of the Company to obtain sufficient funds through operations or 
otherwise to repay its debt obligations, (vii) the ability to collect its 
subscriptions receivable, (viii) the ability to locate and acquire suitable 
acquisition opportunities, and if acquired, the ability of any such businesses 
to generate operating profits, or (ix) the determination by management that the 
capitalized software development costs are not recorded at net realizable value 
resulting in a charge against earnings of the Company of all or part of these 
capitalized costs during the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2002. Although the 
Company believes that the forward looking statements contained herein are 
reasonable, it can give no assurance that the Company's expectations will be 
met. 
 
Results of Operations 
 
         The fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2002 resulted in a net loss of 
$3,462,183 compared to a net loss of $2,524,737 for the fiscal quarter ended 
March 31, 2001. Losses are projected to continue until sufficient revenue is 
generated from equipment sales and licensing fees from the Company's proprietary 
technology. 
 
         Revenues were $427,643 compared to $341,708 from the previous year's 
fiscal quarter. This $85,935 or 25% increase was due to increases in both 
equipment sales and license and transaction fees. The increase of $44,465 in 
equipment sales is primarily due to the addition of equipment sales for 
e-Ports(TM). License and transaction fees increased $41,470 as a result of the 
increased install base. Revenue is still well below the level required for the 
Company to be profitable. 
 
         Cost of sales for the period included labor and equipment of $201,774, 
a decrease of $14,843 or 7% compared to the same period during the prior year. 
This decrease is directly attributable to reduced levels of Business Express 
installation and maintenance costs. 
 
         General and administrative expenses of $1,708,609 increased by $62,377 
or 4% from the same quarter last year. The increase was due principally due to 
increases in promotion expense of $666,645 (of which all was non-cash), and 
product development of $189,738. These increases were partially offset by a 
decrease in legal fees of $574,979, primarily related to the MBE litigation 
which has been settled. 
 
         Compensation expense of $1,426,173 increased by $694,146 or 95%. This 
increase was primarily due to non-cash compensation of $734,930, which related 
in part to stock-based compensation issued to executive officers. 
 
         The interest expense increase of $231,662 is primarily due to the 
increases in non-cash amortization of the debt discount partially offset by 
capitalization of software development interest costs associated with the 
Company's spending to develop its e-Port(TM) network. Depreciation expense 
increased $47,226 to $80,809, largely due to an increase in the depreciable 
asset base. 
 
         Of the total of $3,417,365 of operating and other expenses for the 
quarter, $1,026,554 were non-cash expenses, primarily consulting, promotions, 
employee compensation, and the issuance of common stock in lieu of interest. 
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         The nine-month period ended March 31, 2002 resulted in a net loss of 
$8,182,495 compared to a net loss of $7,715,419 for the comparable period ended 
March 31, 2001. Revenues were $1,118,271 compared to $1,006,709 a $111,562 or 
11% increase. Of the total revenues, equipment sales totaled $598,980, an 
increase of $72,530 or 14%. Cost of sales of $611,805 represented an increase of 
$9,011, and is directly attributable to the increase in equipment sales, offset 
by the decrease in Business Express installation and maintenance costs. General 
and administrative expenses of $4,308,049 increased by $629,741 or 17%. The 
principal reason was a large increase in promotion expense, public relations, 
consultant fees and professional fees of $1,983,919. The increase was offset by 
decreases in legal fees of $965,081 mostly related to the MBE litigation, which 
has been settled. Compensation expense of $3,155,986 increased by $1,346,484 or 
74%. Non-cash compensation was $1,280,825. The interest expense increase of 
$90,865 is primarily due to the increase in non cash amortization of debt 
discount partially offset by the capitalization of software development interest 
costs associated with the Company's spending to develop its e-Port(TM) network. 
 
Plan of Operations 
 
         During the quarter, the Company sold e-Port(TM) terminals and network 
services and continued its work towards the anticipated release of the 
web-enabled e-Port(TM) products and services. The Company also continued 
development of its distribution channels, strategic partnerships, and current 
and future customers. Current e-Port(TM) shipments include capabilities for 
credit card processing, tracking of vending inventory, wireless communication 
and reporting of this inventory data to a monitoring station. New networking and 
financial services capabilities currently being delivered via USALive(TM) to 
customers include electronic transfer of funds and transaction reports to 
customers. e-Port(TM) terminal and USALive network capabilities currently in 
development and testing and targeted for shipment to certain customers during 
the fourth quarter of the year include internet capability, interactive 
advertising, web based transaction reporting and terminal management, and 
acceptance of other forms of cashless payment systems. A new application under 
consideration by the Company is the CineMachine, a vending machine which could 
be installed at locations such as movie theatres, which would sell DVD's. 
 
         The Company is marketing its products through its full-time sales staff 
consisting of five salespeople, approximately 31 authorized resellers, and 
office equipment and vending OEMs, either directly to customer locations or to 
management companies servicing these locations. Strategic partnerships and 
demonstration programs with key distributors continue to be pursued and 
developed. Among these partnerships is the Marketing Agreement signed with IBM 
in June, 2001, which has already generated IBM participation in developing 
market strategies and in identifying specific customer opportunities with 
numerous Fortune 100 consumer package goods, retail, pharmaceutical and large 
vending companies. Applications for e-Port(TM) are believed to exist in a wide 
variety of point of sale locations including retail, coin operated laundromats, 
car wash centers, postage machine dispensers and even possibly gas pumps. One of 
the first USA-IBM installations of technology took place in February 2002 at the 
newly opened, 1,400 room Gaylord Palms Resort & Convention Center in Orlando, 
Florida. Hotel guests can use their room key at any of the vending machines, and 
their purchase is added to their hotel bill. 
 
         In March 2002, the Company signed an agreement with MEI, a world leader 
in the manufacture of electronic coin mechanisms that are found in vending 
machines, coin telephones and other equipment. MEI has agreed to make available 
a cashless payment system to be developed by the Company as part of its future 
vending solutions, which would include a comprehensive suite of software and 
hardware and wide area network communications technologies. The agreement 
contemplates that the combined offering would be available by December 2002. 
 



 
 
 
         During March 2002, the Company demonstrated enhancements to its 
e-Port(TM) and the USALive(TM) network to the vending industry at Spring NAMA, 
the vending industry's semi-annual trade show event. Enhancements included 
mobile commerce technology permitting access to vending machines through 
customer cell phones; proprietary wireless technology allowing for low cost, 
highly reliable connectivity via existing customer telephone connections; and 
capability for customers to manage their own e-Port locations and access vending 
machine data and transaction data on the web. The e-Port(TM) was demonstrated in 
the booths of several different vending machine manufacturers. From the 
inception of shipments of e-Port(TM) to date, the Company has delivered 
e-Ports(TM) to or taken orders from 70 separate customers, many of them on 
behalf of very large corporations with well-known brand names, including two 
Fortune 50 companies. Our sales pipeline includes negotiatons with 10 Fortune 
500 companies. 
 
         On May 14, 2002, USA Acquisition Corp., a wholly-owned subsidiary of 
the Company merged with and into Stitch Networks Corporation pursuant to an 
Agreement and Plan of Merger by and among the Company, USA Acquisition Corp., 
Stitch and the stockholders of Stitch dated April 10, 2002. At the close of the 
transaction, Stitch became a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. The 
stockholders of Stitch were David H. Goodman, Pennsylvania Early Stage Partners, 
L.P., and Maytag Holdings, Inc. 
 
         Stitch, located in Kennett Square, Pennsylvania, is a leading provider 
of wireless remote monitoring, and cashless and mobile commerce solutions. Two 
significant Stitch investors, Maytag Holdings, Inc. and Pennsylvania Early Stage 
Partners, L.P., have become shareholders of the Company. Maytag invested $10 
million in Stitch, and Pennsylvania Early Stage Partners invested $2 million. 
 
         All of the outstanding shares of stock of Stitch were converted into 
the right to receive an aggregate of 22,762,341 shares of Common Stock and 
warrants to purchase up to 7,587,447 shares of Common Stock at $.40 per share at 
any time through June 30, 2002. Additionally, the Company assumed outstanding 
Stitch stock options which were converted into options to purchase an aggregate 
of 2,475,318 shares of Common Stock at $.165 per share at any time prior to May 
14, 2007 and warrants identical to those issued to the stockholders to purchase 
up to 412,553 shares of Common Stock. The exchange rate used to convert the 
capital stock and options of Stitch into Common Stock, warrants and options of 
the Company was determined as the result of an arms length negotiation. Under 
its investment banking contract, Technology Partners (Holdings) LLC is entitled 
to receive an aggregate of 875,000 shares of Common Stock from the Company in 
payment for its services rendered in connection with the Stitch transaction. 
 
         The March 15, 2002 letter of intent had originally provided for the 
issuance of 24,000,000 shares of Common Stock to the Stitch stockholders and 
option holders. The final merger agreement provided that the Stitch stockholders 
would receive only 22,762,341 shares and the Stitch option holders would not 
receive any shares but options to purchase up to 2,475,318 shares at one-half of 
the closing market price of the shares. 
 
         Effective May 14, 2002, the Board of Directors of the Company was 
increased to ten members with the three resulting vacancies to be filled with 
the nominees of Stitch. 
 
         The Stitch financial statements and any pro forma financial information 
required to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission under Item 7 of 
Form 8-K shall be filed by the Company no later than July 29, 2002. 
 
 
                                       12 



 
 
         Technology Partners (Holdings) LLC, an investment banker, has been 
retained by the Company to help it plan and execute the growth of the Company. 
We are currently working to acquire complementary technology, products, services 
and customers. The acquisition of Stitch Networks brings revenues from an on 
going program with Kodak to dispense disposable cameras; potential revenues from 
a program to provide cashless payment systems in retail laundry operations in 
apartments or colleges; and potential revenues from the application of RFID 
(wireless) technology which was demonstrated by Stitch at the Olympics in Coca 
Cola vending machines. Two significant Stitch investors, Maytag Holdings, Inc. 
and Pennsylvania Early Stage Partners, L.P., have become shareholders of the 
Company. Maytag invested $10 million in Stitch, and PA Early Stage Partners 
invested $2 million in Stitch. Maytag owns Dixie Narco, which is the world's 
largest manufacturer of vending machines. A letter of intent was signed on May 
13, 2002, between the Company and a semiconductor company, which expresses our 
mutual intention to reach a definitive agreement within 45 days to produce a new 
product offering and penetrate new and different markets. 
 
 
Liquidity and Capital Resources 
 
         For the quarter ended March 31, 2002, there was a net increase in cash 
of $510,885. This was attributable to $4,128,702 of cash used in operating 
activities, $2,298,198 of cash used for investing activities, principally 
software development cost for the new e-Port(TM) network, offset by cash 
provided by financing activities of $6,937,785 primarily from the issuance of 
Common Stock, and the 2001-D note offering. The cash used in operating 
activities consisted of the operating loss of $8,182,495, partially offset by 
$3,017,428 in non cash charges from the issuance of stock and warrants, and 
$890,062 of non cash amortization of debt discount. As of March 31, 2002, total 
cash on hand was $1,328,455 and the working capital deficit was $136,109. 
 
         During the quarter ended December 31, 2001, the Company initiated a 
$6,500,000 private placement offering (the "2001-D" offering), consisting of 12% 
Convertible Senior Notes ("Notes") due December 31, 2004. Each $10,000 Note is 
convertible into Common Stock at $.40 per share, and interest is payable 
quarterly. Certain stockholders of the Company, who received warrants to 
purchase common stock of the Company as a part of earlier private placements, 
received an extension of the termination date and a reduction of the exercise 
price of a portion of their warrants if they invested in the 2001-D offering. 
The warrants were scheduled to expire by December 31, 2001 or March 2002 
(according to their original terms) at $.50 and if the warrant holder 
participates in the 2001-D offering, the warrants become exercisable at $.10 
through December 31, 2002. The fair value of the warrants on the date of 
extension of $3,424,266 has been recorded as equity, and this debt discount is 
being amortized to interest expense through the maturity date of the Notes. The 
Convertible Note offering has been extended until May 31, 2002. As of March 31, 
2002, gross proceeds of $3,618,985 had been deposited, and additional signed 
subscription documents for $79,237 had been received, for which the Company 
received the cash subsequent to March 31, 2002. 
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         During the quarter ended March 31, 2002, the Company deposited $222,500 
to complete the collections for the subscriptions receivable for the 2001-C 
private placement offering which was closed during the second quarter. The 
Company issued 4,212,350 shares of Common Stock in connection with the 2001-C 
offering, which included $829,342 of cash proceeds and $1,008,872 in exchange 
for services. The Company has extended the expiration date of the warrants in 
the 2001-C offering until May 31, 2002. 
 
         The Company's ability to meet its obligations is currently dependent 
upon its ability to raise capital, which may not be readily available, until the 
Company's products are accepted in the marketplace and can generate sufficient 
operating revenues. These factors raise doubt about the Company's ability to 
continue as a going concern. The Company believes that proceeds from the sale of 
additional debt or equity securities, the potential exercise of outstanding 
warrants and options, future equity or debt offerings, and revenues from its 
business, would be sufficient to fund operations and investing activities until 
at least through the end of the fiscal year. However, there can be no assurance 
that any such additional sales of securities could be made by the Company, or 
that the Company's products will be accepted in the marketplace, or that 
increased revenues would result from its business activities. Under such 
circumstances, the Company may cease to be a going concern or may have to reduce 
its operations. 
 
Part II - Other Information 
 
Item 2.  Changes in Securities 
 
         During a previous quarter, the Company sold a $225,000 9-3/4% 
Convertible Debenture with a maturity date two years following issuance, to La 
Jolla Cove Investors, Inc. The debenture may be converted into Common Stock at 
any time prior to maturity at a price per share equal to the lower of $1.00 or 
80% of the lowest market price during the twenty trading days (changed to 270 
calendar days) immediately prior to the conversion. In addition, La Jolla Cove 
Investors is entitled to receive additional Common Stock purchase warrants equal 
to ten times the number of common shares converted from the debenture. During 
the quarter ended March 31, 2002, La Jolla Cove Investors converted $60,000 of 
principal, receiving 233,100 shares of common stock, and exercised related 
warrants for 2,331,000 shares, receiving a total of 2,564,100 shares of common 
stock. The Debenture was converted at the rate of $.2574 per share and the 
exercise price of the warrants was $.2574 per share and was paid in cash to the 
Company. The shares were issued pursuant to the exemption from registration set 
forth in Section 4(2) of the Act. The Company has, at its cost and expense, 
registered these shares for resale by the holder under the Act. 
 
         During the previous quarter, the Company initiated a private placement 
offering (the "2001-D" offering), consisting of $2,500,000 (later expanded to 
$6,500,000) principal of 12% Convertible Senior Notes due December 31, 2004. 
Each Senior Note is convertible into Common Stock at $.40 per share, and 
interest is payable quarterly. The offering is to close no later than May 31, 
2002. During the quarter ended March 31, 2002, the Company received gross 
proceeds of approximately $2,339,000. The Notes were issued pursuant to the 
exemption from registration set forth in Section 4(2) of the Act. The Company 
has agreed at its cost and expense to use its best efforts to register the 
Common Stock underlying the Notes for resale by the holder under the Act. 
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         During the quarter, 138,375 shares of Common Stock were issued to 
certain holders of 12% Senior Notes due December 31, 2003, in lieu of cash 
payment, for interest earned on the Notes during the quarter ended March 31, 
2002. Such Note holders elected to receive Common Stock at the rate of one share 
per $0.40 of interest earned. Such shares of Common Stock were issued pursuant 
to the exemption from registration set forth in Section 3(a)(9) of the Act. The 
Company, at its cost and expense, has registered these shares under the Act for 
resale by the holder. 
 
Item 4.  Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders 
 
         (a)  The Company held an annual meeting of its shareholders on 
              March 21, 2002. 
 
         (b)  The following members of the Board of Directors were elected: 
 
                                               For                   Against 
                                               ---                   ------- 
              George R. Jensen, Jr.        28,565,083                577,554 
              Stephen P. Herbert           28,630,305                512,332 
              William W. Sellers           28,646,942                495,695 
              William L. Van Alen          28,599,193                543,444 
              Steven Katz                  28,289,461                853,176 
              Douglas M. Lurio             28,557,533                584,104 
              Edwin R. Boynton             28,652,342                490,295 
 
         (c)  The following was the voting in connection with the approval of 
              the appointment of Ernst & Young LLP as the independent public 
              accountants of the Company for fiscal 2002: 
 
                  For:              28,711,263 
                  Against:             238,280 
                  Abstain:             146,204 
 
              The following was the voting in connection with the approval of 
              the increase of the number of authorized shares of Common Stock to 
              85,000,000: 
 
                  For:              12,937,523 
                  Against:           1,685,937 
                  Abstain:             252,566 
                  Broker Non-Votes: 
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Item 6.  Exhibits and Reports on Form 8-K 
 
         (a)  Exhibits. 
 
              2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger dated April 10, 2002, by and 
                  among USA Technologies, Inc., USA Acquisition, Inc., Stitch 
                  Networks Corporation, David H. Goodman, Pennsylvania Early 
                  Stage Partners, L.P., and Maytag Holdings, Inc. 
 
         (b)  Reports on Form 8-K. 
 
              On March 21, 2002, the Company filed a Form 8-K to report that 
              the Company and Stitch Networks Corporation had entered into a 
              binding letter of intent whereby Stitch would merge with and into 
              a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. 
 



 
 
                                   Signatures 
 
In accordance with the requirements of the Exchange Act, the registrant caused 
this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly 
authorized. 
 
                                      USA TECHNOLOGIES, INC. 
 
 
 
                                      /s/ George R. Jensen, Jr. 
Date:  May 20, 2002                   ----------------------------------------- 
                                      George R. Jensen, Jr., Chairman, 
                                      Chief Executive Officer 
 
 
 
                                      /s/ Leland P. Maxwell 
Date:  May 20, 2002                   ----------------------------------------- 
                                      Leland P. Maxwell, Senior Vice President, 
                                      Chief Financial Officer 
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                          AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF MERGER 
 
                  AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF MERGER dated April 10, 2002, by and 
between USA TECHNOLOGIES, INC., a Pennsylvania corporation ("USTT"), USA 
ACQUISITION CORP., a Delaware corporation and wholly-owned subsidiary of 
USTT("USA Acquisition"), STITCH NETWORKS CORPORATION, a Delaware corporation 
("Stitch"), DAVID H. GOODMAN, an individual, MAYTAG HOLDINGS, INC., a Delaware 
corporation, and PENNSYLVANIA EARLY STAGE PARTNERS, L.P., a Delaware limited 
partnership. Each of GOODMAN, MAYTAG HOLDINGS and PENNSYLVANIA EARLY STAGE shall 
be hereinafter referred to severally as "Stockholder" and jointly as 
"Stockholders". 
 
                                   BACKGROUND 
 
                  Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, USA 
Acquisition will be merged with and into Stitch (hereinafter referred to as the 
"Merger") in accordance with the provisions of the Delaware General Corporation 
Law ("GCL"). As of the date hereof, the Stockholders own all of the issued and 
outstanding capital stock of Stitch. As a result of the Merger, the Stockholders 
shall receive shares of Common Stock, no par value, of USTT ("USTT Stock") and 
warrants to purchase USTT Stock ("Warrants") in exchange for all of their 
capital stock of Stitch, and Stitch shall become a wholly-owned subsidiary of 
USTT. 
 
                                    AGREEMENT 
 
                  NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants, 
agreements and provisions contained herein and intending to be legally bound 
hereby, each of USTT, USA Acquisition, the Stockholders and Stitch agree as 
follows: 
 
                                    SECTION 1 
                                   THE MERGER 
 
                  1.1      The Merger. 
 
                           A. Subject to the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement and in accordance with the GCL, USA Acquisition shall be merged with 
and into Stitch at the Effective Time (as defined below). From and after the 
Effective Time, the separate corporate existence of USA Acquisition shall cease 
and Stitch shall continue as the surviving corporation in the Merger (the 
"Surviving Company") continuing its corporate existence under the laws of the 
State of Delaware. 
 
                           B. The Merger shall become effective at the time of 
the filing of the Certificate of Merger in the form attached as Exhibit "A" 
hereto with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware in accordance with 
Section 251(c) of the GCL. The Certificate of Merger shall be filed by the 
Surviving Company at the time of Closing (as such term is defined in Section 1.6 
hereof). The date and time when the Merger shall become effective is referred to 
in this Agreement as the "Effective Time." 
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                           C. At the Effective Time, the Merger shall have the 
legal effect provided in Section 259 of the GCL. 
 
                  1.2      Conversion of Stock.  At the Effective Time: 
 
                           A. Each share of Stitch Stock (as defined below) 
issued and outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time, shall by virtue 
of the Merger and without any action on the part of Stitch or the holder 
thereof, be converted into and represent the right to receive 1.5816 shares of 
USTT Stock and Warrants to purchase .5272 shares of USTT Stock. The form of 
Warrant to be received as a result of the Merger is attached hereto as Exhibit 
"B". In exchange for all of the Stitch Stock (as defined below), the total 
number of shares of USTT Stock to be issued by USTT shall be 22,762,341 and the 
total number of Warrants to be granted by USTT shall be 7,587,447. Each 
Stockholder shall be entitled to receive immediately the Stockholder's pro rata 
portion of an aggregate of 17,962,341 of the shares of USTT Stock into which 
such Stockholder's Stitch Stock were converted pursuant to this Section 1.2.A 
("Initial Shares"); and the remaining 4,800,000 shares of USTT Stock into which 
such Stockholder's Stitch Stock were converted pursuant to this Section 1.2.A 
(the "Escrow Shares"), shall be deposited in escrow pursuant to Section 1.11 and 
shall be held and disposed of in accordance with the terms of the Escrow 
Agreement. The number of shares of USTT Stock as well as the number of shares of 
USTT Stock underlying the Warrants ("Warrant Stock") to be delivered to the 
holders of the Stitch Stock shall be subject to equitable adjustment in the 
event of any stock split, stock dividend, reverse stock split or similar event 
affecting the USTT Stock between the date hereof and the Effective Time. 
 
 
                           B. Each share of Stitch Stock then held in the 
treasury of Stitch shall, by virtue of the Merger, be canceled without payment 
of any consideration therefor and without any conversion thereof. 
 
                           C. Each share of common stock, $.01 par value per 
share, of USA Acquisition issued and outstanding immediately prior to the 
Effective Time shall be converted into and thereafter evidence one share of 
common stock, $.01 par value, of the Surviving Company. 
 
                           D. The Stockholders shall deliver to USTT the 
certificates representing their Stitch Stock. In exchange for such certificates, 
the Stockholders shall receive from USTT certificates representing the 
appropriate number of Initial Shares of USTT Stock and Warrants and the Escrow 
Shares shall be delivered to the Escrow Agent. 
 
                           E. The term Stitch Stock shall mean and include each 
of the following shares of capital stock of Stitch issued and outstanding 
immediately prior to the Effective Time: Common Stock, par value $.01 per share; 
Series A Preferred Stock, $.01 par value per share; and Series B Preferred 
Stock, $.01 par value per share. 
 
                  1.3 No Further Rights or Transfers. At and after the Effective 
Time, the holders of certificates evidencing shares of Stitch Stock shall cease 
to have any rights as a shareholder of Stitch, except for the right to surrender 
such certificates to USTT in exchange for the USTT Stock and Warrants as 
provided herein. 2 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
                  1.4 Certificate of Incorporation. The Certificate of 
Incorporation of USA Acquisition in effect immediately prior to the Effective 
Time shall be the Certificate of Incorporation of the Surviving Company at and 
after the Effective Time until thereafter amended as provided by law; provided, 
however, that the name of the corporation set forth therein shall be changed to 
the name of Stitch. 
 
                  1.5 By-laws. The By-laws of USA Acquisition in effect 
immediately prior to the Effective Time shall be the By-laws of the Surviving 
Company at and after the Effective Time until thereafter amended as provided by 
law; provided, however, that the name of the corporation set forth therein shall 
be changed to the name of the Stitch. 
 
                  1.6 Closing. Closing of the Merger (the "Closing") shall take 
place at the offices of Lurio & Associates, P.C., 2005 Market Street, Suite 
2340, Philadelphia, PA, 19103 immediately following and on the same day as the 
approval of the increase in the authorized shares of USTT Stock by the USTT 
shareholders at the special meeting of shareholders described in Section 4 
herein, or thereafter on the day on which the last of the conditions set forth 
in Section 6 hereof is fulfilled or waived (subject to applicable law), or at 
such later date as USTT, USA Acquisition, the Stockholders, and Stitch shall 
agree. 
 
                  1.7 Actions at the Closing. At the Closing: 
 
                           A. Stitch shall deliver to USTT and USA Acquisition 
the various certificates, instruments and documents referred to in Section 6.1; 
 
                           B. USA and USA Acquisition shall deliver to Stitch 
the various certificates, instruments and documents referred to in Section 6.2; 
 
                           C. Each of USA Acquisition and Stitch shall execute 
and deliver the Certificate of Merger, and the Surviving Corporation shall file 
with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware the Certificate of Merger; 
 
                           D. Each Stockholder shall deliver to USTT the 
certificate(s) representing the Stockholder's Stitch Stock; 
 
                           E. USTT shall deliver the certificates for the 
Initial Shares to each Stockholder in accordance with Section 1.2.A; 
 
                           F. Each Stockholder shall execute and deliver to USTT 
the Lock-up Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit "C"; 
 
                           G. Each Stockholder and USTT shall execute and 
deliver the Registration Rights Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit "D"; 
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                           H. Each of the officers and Directors of Stitch shall 
resign and shall execute and deliver to USTT appropriate documentation in form 
and substance satisfactory to USTT evidencing such resignations; 
 
                           I. Each of the officers and Directors of Stitch and 
each of the Stockholders shall execute and deliver a general release in favor of 
Stitch (provided that rights of any of the foregoing persons to seek 
indemnification from Stitch as otherwise specifically provided in Section 3.3 of 
this Agreement shall not be released), in form and substance satisfactory to 
USTT, covering all the periods prior to the Effective Time; and 
 
                           J. Each of USTT, the Stockholders, and an escrow 
agent to be mutually agreed upon among them (the "Escrow Agent")shall execute 
and deliver the Escrow Agreement substantially in the form attached hereto as 
Exhibit "E" (the "Escrow Agreement") and USTT shall deliver to the Escrow Agent 
a certificate for the Escrow Shares being placed in escrow on the Closing Date 
pursuant to Section 1.11. For purposes of the Lock-up Agreement and the 
Registration Rights Agreement, the Escrow Shares shall be deemed to be held by 
the Stockholders and shall be in the last group of shares to be subject to 
transfer restrictions or registration, as the case may be. 
 
                  1.8 Additional Action. The Surviving Corporation may, at any 
time after the Effective Time, take any necessary action, including executing 
and delivering any document, in the name and on behalf of either Stitch or USA 
Acquisition in order to consummate the Merger. 
 
                  1.9 Fractional Shares. No certificates or scrip representing 
fractional USTT Stock shall be issued to the holder of any Stitch Stock as a 
result of the Merger, and such holders shall not be entitled to any voting 
rights, rights to receive any dividends or distributions or other rights as a 
stockholder of USTT with respect to any fractional USTT Stock that would have 
otherwise been issued to such holder. In lieu of any fractional USTT Stock that 
would have otherwise been issued, each holder that would have been entitled to 
receive a fractional share of USTT Stock shall receive such whole number of USTT 
Stock as is equal to the precise number of USTT Stock to which such holder would 
be entitled, rounded up to the nearest whole number. 
 
                  1.10 Stock Options. Prior to the Effective Time, all of the 
options to purchase Stitch Stock that are issued and outstanding as of the date 
of this Agreement and that are set forth in Schedule 1.10 hereof shall be 
canceled (if not previously exercised) by Stitch and new options shall be 
granted as set forth in Schedule 1.10. At the Effective Time, each then 
outstanding option (an "Option") to purchase Stitch Common Stock granted after 
the date hereof and prior to the Effective Time pursuant to the 1999 Equity 
Compensation Plan shall be canceled, and each holder of an Option, whether or 
not such Option is then currently vested, shall be entitled to receive a fully 
vested option (a "USTT Option") to purchase 1.5816 shares of USTT Stock per 
share of Stitch Common Stock evidenced by such Option. The term of each USTT 
Option shall be five (5) years and the exercise price shall be equal to one-half 
of the Merger Value (as defined in Section 8.6.A) of the USTT Stock. 
Additionally, each holder of an Option shall be entitled to receive Warrants to 
purchase .2636 shares of USTT Stock as if such holder had immediately prior to 
the Effective Time owned the number of shares of Stitch Common Stock into which 
such Option had been exercisable. The USTT Stock into which the USTT Options and 
Warrants are convertible shall be subject to the 
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Lock-up Agreement and the Registration Rights Agreement. The total number of 
Options as of the Effective Time shall be 1,565,025 and the total number of USTT 
Options to be issued by USTT to the Option holders shall be 2,475, 318 and the 
total number of Warrants to be issued to the Option holders shall be 412,553. At 
the time of Closing, USTT shall receive from each holder of an Option 
appropriate releases and other documentation reasonably requested by USTT. 
Stitch represents and warrants to USTT and USA Acquisition that a complete list 
of the holders of such Options, the number of shares of Stitch Common Stock 
covered by such Options, the vesting schedule thereof, and the per share 
exercise price of such Options is set forth in Schedule 1.10 hereto. Upon 
delivery of the certificates for the appropriate number of USTT Options and 
Warrants to the holder of an Option in accordance with this Section 1.10, such 
holder shall have no right to receive any other payment for such Option. The 
USTT Option shall be in the form attached hereto as Exhibit "F". 
 
                  1.11 Escrow. At the Closing, USTT shall deliver to the Escrow 
Agent a certificate (issued in the name of the Escrow Agent or its nominee) 
representing the Escrow Shares, as described in Section 1.2.A, for the purpose 
of securing the indemnification obligations of the Stockholders set forth in 
Section 8 of this Agreement. The Escrow Shares shall be held by the Escrow Agent 
under the Escrow Agreement pursuant to the terms thereof. The Escrow Shares 
shall be held as a trust fund and shall not be subject to any lien, attachment, 
trustee process or any other judicial process of any creditor of any party, and 
shall be held and disbursed solely for the purposes and in accordance with the 
terms of the Escrow Agreement. 
 
                                    SECTION 2 
                         REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES 
 
                  2.1 Representations and Warranties of Stitch. Stitch and each 
of the Stockholders, jointly and severally, represent and warrant to each of 
USTT and USA Acquisition the following: 
 
                           A. Corporate Organization. Stitch is a corporation 
duly organized, existing and in good standing under the laws of the State of 
Delaware, with all requisite power, authority, and licensing (corporate and 
other) to own, operate and lease its properties and carry on its business as now 
being conducted except where the failure to have such power, authority or 
license, has not had, and could not reasonably be expected to have a Material 
Adverse Effect. Stitch is duly qualified to do business as a foreign corporation 
and is in good standing in each jurisdiction where the character of its property 
owned or leased by it or the nature of its activities makes such qualification 
necessary except where the failure to be so qualified could not reasonably be 
expected to have a Material Adverse Effect. As used herein, the term "Material 
Adverse Effect" shall mean any change in or effect on the business of Stitch 
that is materially adverse to the business, operations, financial condition, or 
assets of Stitch, except for any such changes or effects resulting from or 
arising in connection with any changes in general economic or business 
conditions. 
 
                           B. Capitalization. The authorized capital stock of 
Stitch consists of 17,000,000 shares of common stock, $.01 par value per share, 
and 8,391,532 shares of undesignated Preferred Stock, $.01 par value per share, 
of which 3,114,637 have been designated as Series A Convertible Preferred Stock, 
and 5,276,895 have been designated as Series B Convertible Preferred Stock. As 
of the date of this Agreement, the following shares of Stitch Stock are issued 
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and outstanding: 6,000,000 shares of Common Stock, 3,114,637 shares of Series A 
Convertible Preferred Stock, and 5,276,895 shares of Series B Convertible 
Preferred Stock. There are no shares of Stitch Stock held in the treasury of 
Stitch. All of such issued and outstanding shares of Stitch Stock are validly 
issued and duly authorized by Stitch and are fully paid and nonassessable. 
Except for these issued and outstanding shares of Stitch Stock and the Options 
issued and to be issued as described in Schedule 1.10, there are no shares of 
capital stock or other equity securities of Stitch issued and outstanding, and 
there are no (i) subscriptions, options or warrants, calls or conversion, 
exchange or other rights to purchase or acquire any securities of Stitch and no 
securities of Stitch are reserved for issuance for any purpose, or (ii) 
contracts, commitments, agreements or understandings that have not been fully 
performed or any agreements or restrictions to which Stitch is a party or is 
bound or relating to any shares of capital stock or other securities of Stitch, 
whether or not outstanding. Except for possible exercises of Options, the number 
of issued and outstanding shares of Stitch Stock will be the same on the 
Effective Time as on the date hereof. 
 
                           C. Authority. The execution and delivery of this 
Agreement and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby have been 
duly authorized by the Directors and shareholders of Stitch and no other 
corporate proceedings on the part of Stitch are necessary to authorize this 
Agreement or to carry out the transactions contemplated hereby. Stitch has the 
right, power and authority to enter into and perform this Agreement and this 
Agreement constitutes the valid and binding agreement of Stitch, enforceable in 
accordance with its terms, except as such enforceability may be limited by 
bankruptcy, insolvency or similar laws affecting creditors' rights generally and 
subject to the discretion of a court in granting equitable remedies. 
 
                           D. Conflicts with Instruments. Except as set forth in 
Schedule 2.1 (D), neither the execution or delivery of this Agreement by Stitch 
or the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement by it nor 
the compliance with the terms of this Agreement by it will: (i) violate, 
conflict with or result in a breach of any provision of, or constitute a default 
(or an event which, with notice of lapse of time or both, would constitute a 
default) under or result in the termination, give others a right of termination, 
acceleration or cancellation of, or accelerate the performance required by, or 
result in the creation of any lien, security interest, charge or encumbrance 
upon any of the properties of Stitch, or result in being declared void, voidable 
or without further binding effect, any of the terms, conditions or provisions of 
any note, bond, mortgage, indenture, deed of trust, franchise, lease, contract, 
agreement or other instrument or commitment or obligation to which Stitch is a 
party, or by which it or any of its properties may be bound or affected; or (ii) 
violate any provision of any permit, license, certificate or registration to 
which it is subject or pursuant to which it conducts business. 
 
                           E. No Violation. Except as set forth in Schedule 
2.1(E), the execution, delivery, and performance of this Agreement by Stitch 
does not (with or without the giving of notice or the lapse of time or both), in 
any respect, violate, conflict with or constitute a breach of or default under 
(i) any terms or provision of the Certificate of Incorporation or bylaws of 
Stitch, (ii) the terms of any agreement or other instrument to which Stitch is a 
party, (iii) any judgment, order, writ or decree of any court or governmental 
agency by which Stitch or its assets or properties is bound, or (iv) any 
statute, law, rule or regulation applicable to Stitch. Except for corporate 
filings with the Secretary of State of Delaware, no consent, approval, order or 
authorization of, or filing with, any 
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governmental agency is required in connection with the execution, delivery or 
performance by Stitch or any Stockholder of this Agreement. 
 
                           F. Related Party Obligations. Except as set forth on 
Schedule 2.1(F), Stitch has no obligation, liability or commitment (contingent 
or otherwise) to or from any past or present officer, director, or stockholder 
or any party related to, controlling, controlled by or under common control with 
any of the foregoing. 
 
                           G. Governmental Consents. Except as set forth in 
Schedule 2.1 (G), Stitch has all licenses, permits, tariffs, consents, 
approvals, authorizations, qualifications, and orders of governmental 
authorities required in the conduct of its business as presently conducted 
(collectively, the "Governmental Consents"). All Governmental Consents are in 
full force and effect. Stitch is not in default under any Governmental Consent 
and there is no claim, action, suit, proceeding or investigation pending or 
threatened, which would adversely affect any Governmental Consent in any 
material respect. Copies of all Governmental Consents have been previously 
delivered by Stitch to USTT. To Stitch's knowledge, no condition exists which 
(either immediately or upon notice, lapse of time or both) would adversely 
affect the validity of any Governmental Consent in any material respect, and no 
suspension or cancellation of any Governmental Consent is pending or threatened. 
 
                           H. Subsidiaries. Stitch does not own, directly or 
indirectly, an equity interest in a corporation, partnership, joint venture or 
any other entity. 
 
                           I. Financial Statements. Stitch has delivered to USTT 
the following: its audited balance sheet as of December 31, 1999 and 1998; its 
audited statement of operations for the years ended December 31, 1998 and 1999; 
its audited statement of stockholder's equity for the years ended December 31, 
1998 and 1999; its audited statements of cash flows for the years ended December 
31, 1998 and 1999; its income statement for the years ended December 31, 2001 
and 2000; its balance sheets as of December 31, 2001 and 2000; its statement of 
cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000; its statement of 
stockholder's equity for the year ended December 31, 2000; its balance sheet as 
of February 28, 2002; its income statement for the month ended February 28, 
2002; and its statement of cash flows for the month ended February 28, 2002 
(collectively referred to herein as the "Financial Statements"). Copies of the 
Financial Statements are attached hereto as Schedule 2.1(I). The Financial 
Statements fairly present in all material respects Stitch's financial position 
as of the applicable date or dates and the results of its operations for the 
periods reflected therein and were prepared in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles applied on a consistent basis. Except as set 
forth in Schedule 2.1(I), and except for costs and expenses incurred by Stitch 
in its efforts to restructure, refinance or sell its business, since December 
31, 2001, Stitch has not incurred any cost, expense, obligation or liability, 
whether accrued, absolute, contingent or otherwise, except obligations incurred 
in the ordinary course of business. Except as reflected on the Financial 
Statements or the Schedules hereto and except as incurred in the ordinary course 
of business, Stitch has no liabilities or obligations of any kind, known or 
unknown, whether accrued, absolute, contingent or otherwise. 
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                           J. Subsequent Events. Since February 28, 2002, Stitch 
has not except as disclosed in Schedule 2.1(J) hereto or incurred in the 
ordinary course of business: 
 
                                    (i) incurred any obligation or liability 
(contingent or otherwise) for inadequate consideration; 
 
                                    (ii) discharged or satisfied any lien or 
encumbrance or paid any obligation or liability (contingent or otherwise); 
 
                                    (iii) mortgaged, pledged, or subjected to 
lien, charge, security interest, or other encumbrance any of its assets or 
properties; 
 
                                    (iv) sold, assigned, transferred, leased, 
disposed of, or agreed to sell, assign, transfer, lease, or dispose of, any of 
its material assets or properties, except pursuant to the term sheet related to 
the Merger; 
 
                                    (v) acquired or leased any material assets 
or property of any other party; 
 
                                    (vi) canceled or compromised any debt or 
claim; 
 
                                    (vii) waived or released any material 
rights; 
 
                                    (viii) granted or made any commitment to 
grant any wage, salary or employee benefit increase to, or entered into any 
employment contract, bonus, stock option, profit sharing, pension, incentive, 
retirement or other similar arrangement or plan with, any officer, employee or 
other party except as disclosed on Schedule 2.1(U); 
 
                                    (ix) entered into any collective bargaining 
agreement or made any commitment or incurred any liability to any labor 
organization; 
 
                                    (x) made any material capital expenditure; 
 
                                    (xi) suffered any material casualty loss or 
damage; 
 
                                    (xii) declared any dividend or made any 
payment or other distribution in respect of any Stitch Stock; 
 
                                    (xiii) purchased, redeemed, issued, sold, or 
otherwise acquired or disposed of any Stitch Stock, any evidence of its 
indebtedness, or any of its other securities, or granted any options, warrants, 
or other rights with respect thereto; 
 
                                    (xiv) terminated or modified, or agreed to 
the termination or modification of, any of the Material Contracts listed on 
Schedule 2.1(N) hereto; or 
 
 
                                    (xv) suffered the loss of any supplier(s), 
vendor(s) or customer(s), which loss (individually or in the aggregate) has had 
a Material Adverse Effect. 
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                           K. Taxes. Except as set forth in Schedule 2.1(K), 
Stitch has duly filed with the appropriate federal, state, local, and other 
governmental agencies, where appropriate, all tax returns, information returns, 
and reports required to be filed by Stitch and all such returns are accurate in 
all material respects. Stitch has paid in full (or made adequate provision for 
the payment thereof) all taxes (including, without limitation, federal, state 
and local income taxes, franchise taxes, ad valorem taxes, estimated tax 
payments, taxes withheld from employees' salaries, taxes otherwise due with 
respect to, or on account of, its employees, sales and use taxes, and real and 
personal property taxes), interest, penalties, assessments, or deficiencies due 
and owing by Stitch to all taxing authorities. Complete copies of the income tax 
returns of Stitch for the five fiscal years ending December 31, 2001, as filed 
with the Internal Revenue Service ("IRS") and all state taxing authorities, 
signed by an officer of Stitch, and all audit reports received by Stitch during 
the last five years and issued by the IRS or state taxing authorities and all 
consents and agreements entered into during the last five years with the IRS or 
state taxing authorities, were supplied to USTT prior to the date hereof and are 
attached hereto as Schedule 2.1(K). All information reported on such returns is 
true, accurate, and complete in all material respects. Stitch has not adopted a 
plan of complete liquidation under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended 
(the "Code"), or filed a consent pursuant to Section 341(f) of the Code. No tax 
deficiencies have been asserted against Stitch. Stitch is not a party to, nor is 
there any pending, or to the knowledge of Stitch, threatened, action, 
proceeding, or assessment against Stitch for the collection of taxes by any 
governmental authority (federal, state or local), nor is there any review or 
examination by any taxing authority of any return or report filed by Stitch. 
 
                           L. Compliance with Laws. Stitch is in compliance, in 
all material respects, with all federal, state and local laws and regulations 
relating to Stitch's business, including, but not limited to, zoning laws, 
health regulations, building codes, fire codes, occupational safety laws, equal 
employment opportunity laws, immigration laws, wage and hour laws, plant closing 
laws and other federal, state and/or local laws and regulations, and there are 
no pending or threatened violations of any of the foregoing. 
 
                           M. Environmental Matters. Stitch is in compliance, in 
all material respects, with all environmental statutes, laws, regulations, and 
ordinances. Stitch has not received any written or oral communication from any 
governmental authority or private party that alleges that it or any of its 
properties or assets is not, or that the business of Stitch has not been 
conducted in such compliance. 
 
                           N. Material Contracts. Except as set forth on 
Schedule 2.1(N) hereto or listed on any other Schedule hereto (collectively the 
"Material Contracts"), there are none of the following, whether oral or written, 
to which Stitch is a party relating to Stitch's business or any of its 
properties or assets: 
 
                                    (i) real property leases; 
 
                                    (ii) personal property leases; 
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                                    (iii) agreements with customers in excess of 
$50,000; 
 
                                    (iv) agreements with the supplier of any 
services in excess of $50,000; 
 
                                    (v) arrangements with the supplier of any 
goods in excess of $50,000; 
 
                                    (vi) agreements with any franchiser, sales 
agent or representative in excess of $50,000; 
 
                                    (vii) discounts or allowances from 
manufacturers, suppliers or customers; 
 
                                    (viii) borrowing or lending of money, on a 
secured or unsecured basis, or guaranteeing, indemnifying or otherwise becoming 
liable for the obligations or liabilities of another in excess of $50,000; 
 
                                    (ix) financing of accounts receivable or 
other extensions of credit; 
 
                                    (x) non-competition, non-solicitation or 
similar agreements; 
 
                                    (xi) the construction, modification or 
improvement of any building or structure or the incurrance of any other capital 
expenditure in excess of $50,000; and 
 
                                    (xii) any other contract that Stitch deems 
to be material. 
 
Correct and complete copies of all Material Contracts (or where they are oral, 
true and complete written summaries thereof) have been delivered to USTT prior 
to the date hereof. To the knowledge of Stitch, each of the Material Contracts 
is valid, in full force and effect, and binding upon each of the parties thereto 
and enforceable in accordance with its terms, subject to laws of general 
application relating to bankruptcy, insolvency and the relief of debtors and 
other similar laws affecting the rights of creditors generally, general 
equitable principles and the discretion of the equity tribunal having 
jurisdiction, and there has not been any actual or contemplated termination, 
cancellation or limitation of, or any modification or change in, any of the 
Material Contracts. There has not occurred any default, or any event which, with 
the lapse of time or the election of any party other than the Stitch, or any 
combination thereof, will become a default, by Stitch or any other party under 
any of the Material Contracts. 
 
                           O. Bank Accounts. Schedule 2.1(O) hereto is a 
complete and correct list of: (i) all cash and cash equivalents and of each bank 
account and safe deposit box maintained by Stitch, and the names of bank 
contacts and all persons authorized to withdraw funds, sign checks or otherwise 
deal with such cash, cash equivalents, accounts and safe deposit boxes; and (ii) 
all uncleared checks, drafts and draws on or from all such accounts as of 
February 28, 2002, and all checks, drafts and draws written and issued in the 
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month of March 2002, whether cleared or uncleared, listing the date, amount and 
payee of each such check, draft and draw. 
 
 
                           P. Intellectual Property. 
 
                                    (i) Stitch owns all right, title and 
interest (free and clear of all liens, encumbrances, adverse claims, or security 
interests) or possesses adequate third-party licenses or other valid rights to 
use all Intellectual Property (as defined below) owned, registered, licensed, or 
used by Stitch ("Stitch Intellectual Property"). Each item of Stitch 
Intellectual Property will be owned or available for use by the Surviving 
Corporation immediately following the Closing on identical terms and conditions 
as it was immediately prior to the Closing. Stitch has taken reasonable steps in 
accordance with normal industry practice to protect the proprietary nature of 
each item of Stitch Intellectual Property and to maintain in confidence all 
trade secrets and confidential information that it owns or uses. Except as set 
forth in Schedule 2.1(P) hereof, (i) no other person or entity has any rights to 
any of the Stitch Intellectual Property (except pursuant to agreements granted 
in the ordinary course of business), and (ii) no other person or entity is 
infringing, violating or misappropriating any of the Stitch Intellectual 
Property . For purposes of this Agreement, "Intellectual Property" means all (i) 
patents and patent applications, (ii) copyrights and registrations thereof, 
(iii) computer software, data and documentation, (iv) trade secrets and 
confidential business information, whether patentable or unpatentable and 
whether or not reduced to practice, know-how, manufacturing and production 
processes and techniques, research and development information, copyrightable 
works, financial, marketing and business data, pricing and cost information, 
business and marketing plans and customer and supplier lists and information, 
(v) trademarks, service marks, trade names, domain names and applications and 
registrations therefor, and (vi) other proprietary rights relating to any of the 
foregoing. Schedule 2.1(P) hereto lists the Stitch Intellectual Property, 
including each patent, patent application, copyright registration or application 
therefor, and trademark, service mark and domain name registration or 
application therefor of Stitch. The Stitch Intellectual Property constitutes all 
Intellectual Property that is owned by, registered to, licensed to or in which 
Stitch has the right to use, for the operation of the business of Stitch as has 
been conducted for the previous three years. 
 
                                    (ii) None of the products manufactured, 
marketed, sold or licensed, or the services provided, by Stitch to other 
parties, or the marketing, distribution, provision or use thereof, infringes or 
violates, or constitutes a misappropriation of, any Intellectual Property rights 
of any person or entity. Schedule 2.1(P) hereto lists any complaint, claim or 
notice, or written threat thereof, received by Stitch alleging any such 
infringement, violation or misappropriation; and Stitch has provided to USTT 
complete and accurate copies of all written documentation in the possession of 
Stitch relating to any such complaint, claim, notice or threat. Stitch has 
provided to USTT complete and accurate copies of all written documentation in 
Stitch's possession relating to claims or disputes concerning any Stitch 
Intellectual Property. 
 
                                    (iii) Schedule 2.1(P) identifies each 
license or other agreement (or type of license or other agreement) pursuant to 
which Stitch has licensed, distributed or otherwise granted any rights to any 
third party with respect to, any Stitch Intellectual Property. 
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                                    (iv) Schedule 2.1(P) identifies each item of 
Stitch Intellectual Property that is owned by a party other than Stitch, and the 
license or agreement pursuant to which Stitch uses it. 
 
                                    (v) Stitch has never disclosed the source 
code for any of the software owned by Stitch (the "Software") or other 
confidential information constituting, embodied in or pertaining to the Software 
to any person or entity. 
 
                                    (vi) All of the Stitch Intellectual Property 
has been created by employees of Stitch within the scope of their employment by 
Stitch or by independent contractors of Stitch who have executed agreements 
assigning all right, title and interest in such copyrightable materials to 
Stitch. To the extent that any Intellectual Property has been developed or 
created by a third party for Stitch, Stitch has a written agreement with such 
third party with respect thereto, and Stitch thereby either (i) has obtained 
ownership of, and is the exclusive owner of, or (ii) has obtained a license 
(sufficient for the conduct of its business as currently conducted or currently 
planned by Stitch to be conducted) to all such third party's Intellectual 
Property in such work, material or invention by operation of law or by valid 
assignment. No present or former employee of, or consultant to, Stitch, 
including any former employer of a present or former employee or consultant to 
Stitch, has any proprietary, commercial or other interest, direct or indirect, 
in any of the Stitch Intellectual Property. 
 
                           Q. Inventory. All inventory of Stitch whether or not 
reflected on the balance sheet of Stitch as of February 28, 2002, consists of a 
quality and quantity usable and saleable in the ordinary course of business, 
except for obsolete items and items of below-standard quality, all of which have 
been written-off or written-down to net realizable value on the balance sheet. A 
list of the inventory of Stitch as of the date hereof, including valuation 
thereof and location, is attached hereto as Schedule 2.1(Q). 
 
                           R. Accounts Receivable. Except as set forth in 
Schedule 2.1(R), Stitch's accounts receivable reflected on the February 28, 2002 
balance sheet and all accounts receivable generated thereafter (net of allowance 
for doubtful accounts) are bona fide receivables, were generated in the ordinary 
course of business, are accurately dated and are collectible in full in 
accordance with their terms. On or prior to the date hereof, Stitch has 
delivered to USTT an accurate and complete aging schedule of Stitch's accounts 
receivable as of February 28, 2002 which is attached hereto as Schedule 2.1(R). 
 
                           S. Customers and Billings. Prior to the date hereof, 
Stitch has delivered to USTT accurate and complete copies of the following: 
 
                                    (i) Stitch's customer list reflecting name, 
address, current billing, phone numbers, authorization codes; 
 
                                    (ii) Stitch's list of customers reflecting 
the delivery of goods and services which are to be made after the Closing Date. 
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                           T. Insurance Attached hereto as Schedule 2.1(T) is a 
list of all of Stitch's insurance policies of every nature. Since January 1, 
1999, Stitch has not failed to give any notice or to present any claim under any 
insurance policy in a due and timely fashion, nor has it permitted a lapse in 
any of its insurance policies at any time. Since December 31, 2001, Stitch has 
not suffered any casualty, loss or damage in excess of $5,000 in the aggregate 
for all such casualties, losses and damages, whether or not any such loss or 
damage is or was covered by insurance. 
 
                           U. Employee Benefit Plans. 
 
                                    (i) Except as set forth on Schedule 2.1(U), 
Stitch does not sponsor, maintain, administer or contribute to (nor has it ever 
sponsored, maintained, administered or contributed to): (i) any employee pension 
benefit plan (as defined in Section 3(2) of the Employee Retirement Income 
Security Act of 1974 ("ERISA")) (a "Retirement Plan"), (ii) any plan or 
arrangement providing health (medical, dental or vision), disability, life, 
accident, legal aid, dependent care, supplemental unemployment or education 
benefits; any plan or contract providing for benefits on severance or 
termination of employment, reduction of hours, change in employment category or 
similar event; any program providing for paid time off (including holiday pay, 
sick leave, vacation, leave of absence, disability); any fringe benefit 
(including company cars); or any employee welfare benefit plan (as defined in 
Section 3(1) of ERISA) not included in the foregoing categories (a "Welfare 
Plan"), and (iii) any contract, policy or practice relating to employment; any 
contract, policy or practice providing payments or benefits upon a change in 
control, management or ownership; any stock option, stock purchase, stock 
appreciation or stock ownership plan; any bonus, performance or incentive 
compensation plan; or any contract, policy or practice providing compensation or 
benefits not included in the foregoing categories or in subsections (i) or (ii) 
above (a "Benefit Arrangement"). All Retirement Plans, Welfare Plans and Benefit 
Arrangements sponsored, maintained, administered or contributed to by Stitch are 
hereinafter collectively referred to as "Employee Benefit Plans." 
 
                                    (ii) With respect to each Employee Benefit 
Plan, Stitch has delivered to USTT true, correct and complete copies, including 
any and all amendments thereto, of the following (to the extent applicable): (i) 
the Plan document and amendments of the Plan document (or, if no written plan 
document exists, a description thereof), (ii) the current and all prior Summary 
Plan Descriptions and any employee communications describing the terms or 
operations of the Plan, (iii) the three most recently filed Form 5500s including 
all schedules thereto and any related accountant's reports, (iv) the 
determination letters issued by the IRS, (v) the three most recent actuarial 
valuations (in the case of a defined benefit plan) or most recent allocation 
reports (in the case of a defined contribution plan), (vi) any current or prior 
collective bargaining agreements or other contracts requiring contributions to 
such Plan, (vii) any current or prior employee handbooks or policy manuals which 
refer to such Plan, and (viii) any fiduciary liability insurance policies or 
fidelity bonds relating to such Plan. 
 
                                    (iii) The assets of Stitch are not subject 
to any liens under ERISA or the Code, and no event has occurred, and no 
condition exists, which could subject Stitch or its assets to a future 
liability, obligation or lien on account of any Controlled Group Benefit Plan. 
For purposes of this subsection, a Controlled Group Benefit Plan means any 
Employee Benefit Plan which Stitch or any affiliated entity, within the meaning 
of Section 414(b), (c), (m) or (o) of the 
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Internal Revenue Code (an "Affiliate"), maintains or at any time maintained, or 
to which Stitch or any Affiliate has at any time contributed or been obligated 
to contribute. 
 
                                    (iv) No Controlled Group Benefit Plan is or 
at any time was a "multiemployer plan" (within the meaning of ERISA Section 
3(37)), nor has Stitch or any Affiliate ever maintained, sponsored or been 
required to make contributions to any such plan. No Controlled Group Benefit 
Plan is or at any time was a "multiple employer welfare arrangement" (within the 
meaning of ERISA Section 3(40)), nor has Stitch or any Affiliate ever 
maintained, sponsored or been required to make contributions to any such 
arrangement. 
 
                                    (v) Each Employee Benefit Plan is, and has 
at all times been, administered, maintained and operated in compliance with its 
terms and in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Code, ERISA and 
all other federal, state and local laws (and all rules and regulations 
promulgated or proposed thereunder). Each Employee Benefit Plan which Stitch 
currently maintains, administers, sponsors or contributes to can be amended, 
terminated or discontinued at any time without liability to Stitch. 
 
                                    (vi) Stitch has performed all obligations 
required to be performed by it by the terms of each Employee Benefit Plan 
(including, but not limited to, filing all governmental returns or reports on a 
timely basis), and all contributions or payments deducted by Stitch for tax 
purposes were properly deductible in the year for which such deductions were 
claimed. Stitch has made no non-deductible contributions (within the meaning of 
Code Section 4972) to any Employee Benefit Plan. 
 
                                    (vii) There are no actions, proceedings, 
investigations or claims of any kind (other than routine benefit claims made in 
the ordinary course), including claims for civil penalties, pending or 
threatened, against any person or entity with respect to any aspect of the terms 
or operations of any Employee Benefit Plan, and no events or omissions have 
occurred which could give rise to any such actions, proceedings, investigations 
or claims. There have been no audits or investigations of any Employee Benefit 
Plan by any governmental agency except as set forth on Schedule 2.1(U). 
 
                                    (viii) Each Retirement Plan that is or was 
intended to constitute a qualified plan under Section 401(a) of the Code is, and 
has at all times been, qualified, in form and operation, under Section 401(a) of 
the Code and is the subject of a favorable determination letter from the IRS. 
 
                                    (ix) With respect to any Retirement Plan 
(whether or not terminated) which is a defined benefit plan (as defined in 
Section 3(35) of ERISA) (including, for this purpose, any Controlled Group 
Benefit Plan which is a Retirement Plan): (i) neither Stitch nor any Affiliate 
has incurred or would incur any liability to the Pension Benefit Guaranty 
Corporation ("PBGC"), the Retirement Plan, Plan participants or any other person 
or entity on account of the termination of such Retirement Plan or a withdrawal 
therefrom, (ii) the fair market value of the net assets of such Plan equal or 
exceed both the "benefit liabilities" of the Plan for purposes of ERISA Section 
4041 and the present value of all projected benefit obligations (including, but 
not limited to, 
 
                                       14 
 



 
 
 
 
any early retirement or other subsidy) calculated in accordance with Statement 
No. 87 of the Financial Accounting Standards Board, based on the actuarial 
methods, tables and assumptions that are no more favorable to the Plan than the 
actuarial methods, tables and assumptions that would be used by the PBGC in 
terminating an underfunded single employer plan on the date of such calculation, 
(iii) there have not been any "reportable events" (as defined in Section 4043 of 
ERISA) with respect to which the 30 day notice requirement has not been waived, 
(iv) the funding method for such Plan and the actuarial assumptions used in 
connection with the funding of such Plan satisfy the requirements of Section 412 
of the Internal Revenue Code and Section 302 ERISA, and (v) such Plan does not 
have any unfunded past service liabilities. 
 
                                    (x) With respect to any Retirement Plan 
which is unfunded, Stitch has adequately provided for, and its financial 
statements accurately reflect (in accordance with GAAP consistently applied), 
the amount of all accrued benefits under such Plan, and such accrued benefits 
were computed based on actuarial methods, tables and assumptions, each of which 
is itself reasonable. 
 
                                    (xi) No Controlled Group Benefit Plan 
provides health, medical or similar benefits to retirees or other former 
employees or their beneficiaries (except to the extent required under ERISA 
Sections 601-608). 
 
                                    (xii) Except as provided in Section 1.10 
hereof, the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement will 
not (i) entitle any current or former employee or officer of Stitch or of any 
Affiliate to severance pay, unemployment compensation or any other payment, 
except as expressly provided in this Agreement, including any schedules attached 
hereto, (ii) accelerate the time of payment or vesting or increase the amount of 
compensation due any such employee or officer except as expressly provided in 
this Agreement, including schedules attached hereto, or (iii) result in any 
prohibited transaction described in Section 406 of ERISA or Section 4975 of the 
Code for which an exemption does not apply. 
 
                                    (xiii) With respect to any Employee Benefit 
Plan that is funded wholly or partially through an insurance policy, or with 
respect to the liabilities or expenses of such Plan, there will be no liability 
of Stitch or any Affiliate as of the Closing under any such insurance policy or 
ancillary agreement with respect to such insurance policy in the nature of a 
retroactive rate adjustment, loss sharing arrangement or other actual contingent 
liability arising wholly or partially out of events occurring prior to the 
Closing. The consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement 
will not cause a revocation or material modification of any such insurance 
policy, and all such policies can be assumed by USTT at its option. Schedule 
2.1(U) includes all insurance policies described in this subsection (xiii). 
 
                                    (xiv) Stitch and all Affiliates have at all 
times complied with the COBRA group health plan continuation of coverage 
requirements under ERISA Sections 601-608 and the regulations promulgated 
thereunder. Schedule 2.1(U) lists all persons who (i) currently have or are 
entitled to COBRA continuation coverage under any Employee Benefit Plan 
currently or previously maintained by Stitch, specifying the date such coverage 
or entitlement thereto began for each person and the date the maximum required 
period of coverage for such person will end, and (ii) 
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are eligible to elect such COBRA continuation coverage or to have it elected on 
their behalf on account of a qualifying event which has already occurred or 
which will occur prior to Closing. 
 
                           V. Labor Relations/Employment Warranties. 
 
                                    (i) At the present time and for the past 
five years: (i) no collective bargaining representative has the right to 
represent any group of Stitch's employees; (ii) there is no petition for 
election of a collective bargaining representative; and (iii) there is no 
organizational effort by any labor organization which could affect any employee 
of the Stitch. 
 
                                    (ii) There is no strike, slowdown, work 
stoppage or interruption, or labor dispute pending, or threatened, against 
Stitch. 
 
                                    (iii) Stitch has materially complied with 
all employment related laws. 
 
                                    (iv) Stitch has set forth on Schedule 2.1(V) 
all material facts concerning all employment related suits, or any claims, 
investigations, charges, complaints, or grievances which have been brought or 
arose since January 1, 1999. Stitch has satisfied and fully performed all 
judgments, decrees, orders, conciliation agreements, and settlement agreements 
to which it is subject and has provided USTT with a copy of any such judgment, 
decree, order, or agreement. 
 
                                    (v) Except as set forth on Schedule 2.1(V), 
Stitch has not adopted and is not subject to any obligation under any 
affirmative action plan or similar program. 
 
                                    (vi) Stitch has provided USTT with a copy of 
all employee handbooks, manuals and written employment related policies and a 
complete description of all other employment related policies and practices. 
 
                                    (vii) Except as set forth in Schedule 
2.1(V), 
 
                                            (a) All employees of Stitch can be 
terminated at will; 
 
                                            (b) Stitch has not entered into any 
employment or consulting agreement or become obligated under any other document, 
policy or practice which gives to any person a right to employment or 
compensation after the date hereof; and 
 
                                            (c) Stitch has no termination or 
severance arrangement nor any other contractual obligation with respect to any 
employee or former employee of Stitch, which cannot be terminated after the date 
hereof without any cost to USTT or Stitch. 
 
                                    (viii) Schedule 2.1(V) is a complete and 
accurate list of each of Stitch's employees and includes 
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                                            (a) his/her date of hire, position, 
present compensation rate, amounts and dates of bonuses and increases in 
compensation since January 1, 1999, amounts and dates of all future bonuses and 
increases in compensation of which Stitch has made a commitment prior to the 
date hereof, and announced termination date (if any); 
 
                                            (b) the amounts of all accrued 
vacation, sick, and other leave, accrued severance entitlement, accrued 
commission, and accrued bonuses (including any pro rata accruals for a portion 
of a year) for Stitch's employees and former employees as of the date hereof and 
such amounts expected to be accrued as of the date hereof; and 
 
                                            (c) all automobiles, club membership 
and other perquisites provided to employees and the annual cost thereof. 
 
                                    (ix) Except as set forth on Schedule 2.1(V) 
(i) other than amounts which have not yet become payable in accordance with 
Stitch's customary practices, Stitch has paid in full to its employees all 
wages, salaries, commission, bonuses and other compensation for all services 
performed by them to date, and (ii) Stitch has paid all severance pay, if any, 
and benefits, FICA, withholding taxes and vacation pay, if any, for all of its 
employees and is not subject to any claim for non-payment or non-performance of 
any of the foregoing. 
 
                                    (x) Stitch has provided USTT with access to 
the personnel files and employment records of all of its employees and former 
employees. 
 
                           W. Litigation. Except as set forth on Schedule 
2.1(W), there is no litigation, claim, arbitration, proceeding, or governmental 
investigation (i) to which Stitch is a party, (ii) relating to any of its 
respective properties or businesses, (iii) threatened against Stitch or any of 
its properties or business, (iv) challenging the legality of, or Stitch's right 
to enter into or perform its obligations under, this Agreement or the 
transactions contemplated hereby, or (v) asserting any right with respect to the 
Stitch Stock. 
 
                           X. Books and Records. Stitch has made available to 
USTT and its representatives all of its tax, accounting, corporate and financial 
books and records, whether in written, electronic or other form. All such books 
and records are materially complete and materially correct, have been maintained 
on a current basis, and fairly reflect the basis for Stitch's financial 
condition and results of operations. 
 
                  2.1.1 Stockholder's Knowledge. The representations and 
warranties of each Stockholder set forth in Section 2.1 are made to each of such 
Stockholder's knowledge. The foregoing shall not, however, affect in any manner 
whatsoever any of the Stockholder's indemnification obligations under Section 
8.1.A hereof, and solely for the purposes thereof the knowledge qualification of 
the Stockholders shall not be applied. 
 
                  2.2 Representations and Warranties of Stockholders. Each 
Stockholder for such Stockholder, and not jointly and severally, represents and 
warrants to USTT and USA Acquisition as follows: 
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                           A. Stock Ownership. The Stockholder is the sole 
record and beneficial owner of all of the Stitch Stock as reflected on Schedule 
2.2(A) hereto, free and clear of all liens, restrictions, pledges, claims, 
security interests and other encumbrances. The Stockholder has full power and 
authority to transfer the Stockholder's Stitch Stock as provided herein without 
the consent or approval of any other person or entity. 
 
                           B. Authority. The execution and delivery of this 
Agreement and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby have been 
duly authorized by the Stockholders and no other proceedings (corporate or 
otherwise) on the part of the Stockholder are necessary to authorize this 
Agreement or to carry out the transactions contemplated hereby. The Stockholder 
has the right, power and authority to enter into and perform this Agreement and 
this Agreement constitutes the valid and binding agreement of the Stockholder, 
enforceable in accordance with its terms, except as such enforceability may be 
limited by bankruptcy, insolvency or similar laws affecting creditors' rights 
generally and subject to the discretion of a Court in granting equitable 
remedies. 
 
                           C. Conflicts with Instruments. Neither the execution 
or delivery of this Agreement by the Stockholder or the consummation of the 
transactions contemplated by this Agreement by it nor the compliance with the 
terms of this Agreement by it will: (i) violate, conflict with or result in a 
breach of any provision of, or constitute a default (or an event which, with 
notice of lapse of time or both, would constitute a default) under or result in 
the termination, give others a right of termination, acceleration or 
cancellation of, or accelerate the performance required by, or result in the 
creation of any lien, security interest, charge or encumbrance upon any of the 
properties of the Stockholder, or result in being declared void, voidable or 
without further binding effect, any of the terms, conditions or provisions of 
any note, bond, mortgage, indenture, deed of trust, franchise, lease, contract, 
agreement or other instrument or commitment or obligation to which the 
Stockholder is a party, or by which the Stockholder or any of the Stockholder's 
properties may be bound or affected; or (ii) violate any provision of any 
permit, license, certificate or registration to which it the Stockholder is 
subject or pursuant to which the Stockholder conducts business. 
 
                           D. No Violation. The execution, delivery, and 
performance of this Agreement by the Stockholder does not (with or without the 
giving of notice or the lapse of time or both), in any respect, violate, 
conflict with or constitute a breach of or default under (i) any terms or 
provision of the organizational documents, if any, of the Stockholder, (ii) the 
terms of any agreement or other instrument to which the Stockholder is a party, 
(iii) any judgment, order, writ or decree of any court or governmental agency by 
which the Stockholder or the Stockholder's assets or properties is bound, or 
(iv) any statute, law, rule or regulation applicable to the Stockholder. No 
consent, approval, order or authorization of, or filing with, any governmental 
agency is required in connection with the execution, delivery or performance by 
the Stockholder of this Agreement. 
 
                           E. Investment Intent. The Stockholder is acquiring 
the USTT Stock and Warrants hereunder for the Stockholder's own account for 
investment purposes and not for any resale or distribution thereof. 
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                           F. Lack of Marketability. The Stockholder understands 
that (i) there are substantial restrictions on the transferability of the USTT 
Stock, the Warrants, and the Warrant Stock; (ii) there is no guarantee of a 
purchaser for the USTT Stock, Warrants, or Warrant Stock; (iii) as a result, the 
Stockholder may have to hold the USTT Stock, Warrants, or Warrant Stock for an 
indefinite period of time; and (iv) the Stockholder is able to bear the economic 
risk of an investment in the USTT Stock, Warrants, or Warrant Stock and to hold 
any of these securities for an indefinite period of time. 
 
                           G. Investment Knowledge. The Stockholder has been 
given such information relative to USTT as well as the opportunity to ask 
questions of and receive answers from USTT and to obtain any additional 
information which USTT possesses or can obtain without unreasonable effort or 
expense, as the Stockholder believes necessary or appropriate to the investment 
decision to acquire the USTT Stock and the Warrants. The Stockholder has such 
knowledge and experience in financial and business matters that the Stockholder 
is capable of evaluating the merits and risks of an investment in the USTT Stock 
and Warrants. The Stockholder has thoroughly reviewed the Agreement and fully 
understands the terms thereof and has received and fully reviewed and 
understands each of the following: USTT's Form 10-KSB for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2001; USTT"s Form 10-QSB for the quarter ended September 30, 2001; 
USTT's Form 10-QSB for the quarter ended December 31, 2001; and USTT's Proxy 
Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders held on March 21, 2002. 
 
                           H. Transfer Restrictions. The Stockholder will not 
sell, assign, dispose of, or transfer the USTT Stock, Warrants, or Warrant Stock 
except in compliance with all applicable securities laws and until registered 
under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended ("Act"), upon the reasonable 
request of USTT, and as a condition of such sale, assignment, disposition or 
transfer, deliver to USTT, if requested, the written opinion of the 
Stockholder's counsel that such sale, assignment, disposition or transfer is in 
compliance with all such securities laws. 
 
                           I. Legend. The Stockholder acknowledges that until 
otherwise registered under the Act, the certificates representing the USTT 
Stock, the Warrants, and the Warrant Stock shall have substantially the 
following legend affixed to them: 
 
         THESE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 
         1933, AS AMENDED, THE PENNSYLVANIA SECURITIES ACT OF 1972, OR THE 
         SECURITIES LAWS OF ANY OTHER JURISDICTION, IN RELIANCE UPON EXEMPTIONS 
         UNDER THOSE ACTS. THE SALE OR OTHER DISPOSITION OF THESE SECURITIES IS 
         PROHIBITED UNLESS THE CORPORATION RECEIVES AN OPINION OF COUNSEL 
         SATISFACTORY TO IT THAT SUCH SALE OR DISPOSITION CAN BE MADE WITHOUT 
         REGISTRATION UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, THE 
         SECURITIES OF ANY STATE. BY ACQUIRING THESE SECURITIES, THE HOLDER 
         REPRESENTS THAT HE HAS A ACQUIRED SUCH SECURITIES FOR INVESTMENT 
         PURPOSES ONLY AND THAT HE WILL NOT SELL OR OTHERWISE DISPOSE OF THESE 
         SECURITIES WITHOUT REGISTRATION OR COMPLIANCE WITH THE AFORESAID ACTS 
         AND THE RULES AND REGULATIONS ISSUED THEREUNDER. 
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                           J. Residence. The Stockholder is a resident or 
domiciliary of the state listed opposite such Stockholder's name on Schedule 
2.2(J) and is an accredited investor as such term is defined under Rule 501 
promulgated under the Act. 
 
                  2.3 Representations and Warranties of USTT.  USTT  represents 
and warrants to Stitch the following: 
 
                           A. Corporate Organization. USTT is a corporation duly 
organized, existing and in good standing under the laws of the Commonwealth of 
Pennsylvania, with all requisite power, authority and licensing (corporate and 
other) to own, operate and lease its properties and carry on its business as now 
being conducted except where the failure to have such power, authority or 
license, has not had, and could not reasonably be expected to have a Material 
Adverse Effect. USTT is duly qualified to do business as a foreign corporation 
and is in good standing in each jurisdiction where the character of its property 
owned or leased by it or the nature of its activities makes such qualification 
necessary except where the failure to be so qualified could not reasonably be 
expected to have a Material Adverse Effect. As used herein, the term "Material 
Adverse Effect" shall mean any change in or effect on the business of USTT that 
is materially adverse to the business, operations, financial condition, or 
assets of USTT, except for any such changes or effects resulting from or arising 
in connection with any changes in general economic or business conditions. 
 
                           B. Capitalization. The authorized capital stock of 
USTT consists of 85,000,000 shares of common stock, no par value per share, and 
1,800,000 shares of undesignated Preferred Stock, no par value, of which 900,000 
have been designated as Series A Convertible Preferred Stock and 250,000 as 
Series B Equity Participating Preferred Stock. As of March 22, 2002, the 
following shares are issued and outstanding: 38,358,894 shares of Common Stock, 
no par value; 544,884 shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock; and no 
shares of Series B Participating Preferred Stock. Except for the issued and 
outstanding shares described above and as described in Schedule 2.3(B) or in the 
SEC Reports (as defined below) or in USTT's Proxy Statement for the Annual 
Meeting of Shareholders held on March 21, 2002, as of March 22, 2002, there are 
no shares of capital stock or other equity securities of USTT issued and 
outstanding, and there are no (i) subscriptions, options, warrants, calls or 
conversion, exchange or other rights to purchase or acquire any securities of 
USTT and no securities of USTT are reserved for issuance for any purpose, or 
(ii) contracts, commitments, agreements or understandings that have not been 
fully performed or any agreements or restrictions to which USTT is a party or is 
bound or relating to any shares of capital stock or other securities of USTT, 
whether or not outstanding. 
 
                           C. Authority. The execution and delivery of this 
Agreement and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby have been 
duly authorized by the directors of USTT and other than the approval by the USTT 
Shareholders of the proposal described in Section 4 hereof, no other corporate 
proceedings on the part of USTT are necessary to authorize this Agreement or to 
carry out the transactions contemplated hereby. USTT has the right, power and 
authority to enter into and perform this Agreement and this Agreement 
constitutes the valid and binding agreement of USTT, enforceable in accordance 
with its terms, except as such enforceability 
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may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency or similar laws affecting creditors' 
rights generally and subject to the discretion of a Court in granting equitable 
remedies. 
 
                           D. Conflicts with Instrument. Neither the execution 
or delivery of this Agreement by USTT or the consummation of the transactions 
contemplated by this Agreement by it nor the compliance with the terms of this 
Agreement by it will: (i) violate, conflict with or result in a breach of any 
provision of, or constitute a default (or an event which, with notice or lapse 
of time or both, would constitute a default) under or result in the termination, 
give others a right of termination, acceleration or cancellation of, or 
accelerate the performance required by, or result in the creation of any lien, 
security interest, charge or encumbrance upon any of the properties of USTT, or 
result in being declared void, voidable or without further binding effect, any 
of the terms, conditions or provisions of any note, bond, mortgage, indenture, 
deed of trust, franchise, lease, contract, agreement or other instrument or 
commitment or obligation to which USTT is a party, or by which it or any of its 
properties may be bound or affected; or (ii) violate any provision of any 
permit, license, certificate or registration to which it is subject or pursuant 
to which it conducts business. 
 
                           E. All of the USTT Stock will be, when issued in 
accordance with this Agreement, duly authorized, validly issued and 
non-assessable. All of the Warrants will be, when issued in accordance with this 
Agreement, duly authorized, validly issued and non-assessable. 
 
                           F. SEC Filings; Financial Statements. 
 
                                    (a) USTT has filed all forms, reports and 
documents required to be filed by it with the Securities and Exchange Commission 
(the "SEC") since January 1, 2000 through the date of this Agreement 
(collectively, the "SEC Reports"). As of the respective dates they were filed, 
(i) the SEC Reports were prepared, and all forms, reports and documents filed 
with the SEC after the date of this Agreement and prior to the Effective Time 
will be prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the requirements 
of the Securities Act or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended 
(together with the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder, the "Exchange 
Act"), as the case may be, and (ii) none of the SEC Reports contained, nor will 
any forms, reports and documents filed after the date of this Agreement and 
prior to the Effective Time contain, any untrue statement of a material fact or 
omit to state a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary in 
order to make the statements made therein, in the light of the circumstances 
under which they were made, not misleading. 
 
                                    (b) Each of the consolidated financial 
statements (including, in each case, any notes thereto) contained in the SEC 
Reports and in any form, report or document filed after the date of this 
Agreement and prior to the Effective Time was, or will be, as the case may be, 
prepared in accordance with GAAP applied on a consistent basis throughout the 
periods indicated (except as may be indicated in the notes thereto or, in the 
case of unaudited statements, as permitted by Form 10-Q of the SEC) and each 
presented or will present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated 
financial position of USTT and its consolidated subsidiaries as at the 
respective dates thereof and for the respective periods indicated therein, 
except as otherwise noted therein (subject, in the case of unaudited statements, 
to normal and recurring year-end adjustments). 
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                                    (c) To the knowledge of USTT, no event has 
occurred within the 15 days immediately prior to the date hereof which is 
required to be reported on Form 8-K under the Securities Act. 
 
                  2.4      Representations and Warranties of USA Acquisition. 
USA Acquisition represents and warrants to Stitch the following: 
 
                           A. Corporate Organization. USA Acquisition is a 
corporation duly organized, existing and in good standing under the laws of the 
State of Delaware, with all requisite power, authority and licensing (corporate 
and other) to own, operate and lease its properties and carry on its business as 
now being conducted except where the failure to have such power, authority or 
license, has not had, and could not reasonably be expected to have a Material 
Adverse Effect. USA Acquisition is duly qualified to do business as a foreign 
corporation and is in good standing in each jurisdiction where the character of 
its property owned or leased by it or the nature of its activities makes such 
qualification necessary except where the failure to be so qualified could not 
reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect. As used herein, the 
term "Material Adverse Effect" shall mean any change in or effect on the 
business of USA Acquisition that is materially adverse to the business, 
operations, financial condition, or assets of USA Acquisition, except for any 
such changes or effects resulting from or arising in connection with any changes 
in general economic or business conditions. 
 
                           B. Capitalization. The authorized capital stock of 
USA Acquisition consists of 100,000 shares of common stock, $.001 par value per 
share. As of the date of this Agreement, the following shares are issued and 
outstanding: 100,000 shares of common stock, $.001 par value. Except for the 
issued and outstanding shares described above, there are no shares of capital 
stock or other equity securities of USA Acquisition issued and outstanding, and 
there are no (i) subscriptions, options, warrants, calls or conversion, exchange 
or other rights to purchase or acquire any securities of USA Acquisition and no 
securities of USA Acquisition are reserved for issuance for any purpose, or (ii) 
contracts, commitments, agreements or understandings that have not been fully 
performed or any agreements or restrictions to which USA Acquisition is a party 
or is bound or relating to any shares of capital stock or other securities of 
USA Acquisition, whether or not outstanding. 
 
                           C. Authority. The execution and delivery of this 
Agreement and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby have been 
duly authorized by the directors and sole stockholder of USA Acquisition and no 
other corporate proceedings on the part of USA Acquisition are necessary to 
authorize this Agreement or to carry out the transactions contemplated hereby. 
USA Acquisition has the right, power and authority to enter into and perform 
this Agreement and this Agreement constitutes the valid and binding agreement of 
USA Acquisition, enforceable in accordance with its terms, except as such 
enforceability may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency or similar laws 
affecting creditors' rights generally and subject to the discretion of a Court 
in granting equitable remedies. 
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                           D. Conflicts with Instrument. Neither the execution 
or delivery of this Agreement by USA Acquisition or the consummation of the 
transactions contemplated by this Agreement by it nor the compliance with the 
terms of this Agreement by it will: (i) violate, conflict with or result in a 
breach of any provision of, or constitute a default (or an event which, with 
notice or lapse of time or both, would constitute a default) under or result in 
the termination, give others a right of termination, acceleration or 
cancellation of, or accelerate the performance required by, or result in the 
creation of any lien, security interest, charge or encumbrance upon any of the 
properties of USA Acquisition, or result in being declared void, voidable or 
without further binding effect, any of the terms, conditions or provisions of 
any note, bond, mortgage, indenture, deed of trust, franchise, lease, contract, 
agreement or other instrument or commitment or obligation to which USA 
Acquisition is a party, or by which it or any of its properties may be bound or 
affected; or (ii) violate any provision of any permit, license, certificate or 
registration to which it is subject or pursuant to which it conducts business. 
 
                                    SECTION 3 
                                    COVENANTS 
 
                  3.1. Stitch and each Stockholder covenants and agrees that 
from and after the date of the execution and delivery of this Agreement and 
until the Effective Time: 
 
                           A. Except as set forth in Schedule 3.1(A), Stitch 
shall use reasonable good faith efforts to continue to conduct its business in 
the ordinary course and in the same manner as heretofore, and will use 
reasonable, diligent commercial efforts to preserve its business organization 
intact and keep available to USTT the services of its present employees and 
preserve the good will of customers and suppliers and others having business 
relations with Stitch. Stitch shall maintain its assets in their condition as of 
the date hereof, subject to ordinary wear and tear. 
 
                           B. Stitch shall give to USTT and its representatives 
full access during normal business hours, and on reasonable prior notice, to all 
of the assets, books, records, employees and payroll lists and records, 
agreements, and documents of Stitch, including, without limitation, all of the 
books of account and business records or other writings, computer data and 
information, computer programs, sales invoices and credit memos, ledgers, 
journals, bank statements, canceled checks, deposit slips, tax returns, tax 
assessments and notices, claims by or against Stitch, judgments, financing 
statements, security agreements, liens, computer runs, marketing and promotional 
plans, promotional or pricing allowances, price lists, credits, rebates, and/or 
discounts, payment and credit terms with suppliers and customers, customer 
complaints and claims, and insurance claims, wherever located (collectively 
hereinafter the "Stitch Books and Records"). Stitch will furnish to USTT all 
information with respect to the affairs of Stitch which USTT may from time to 
time reasonably request, and USTT and its representatives may, prior to the 
Closing, make such examination and investigation of said Stitch Books and 
Records and of its properties, assets, and business, as USTT deems necessary or 
advisable, and may examine any financial statements, including without 
limitation, internally prepared financial statements or management reports, and 
the work papers of the accountant or accountants employed by or servicing the 
Stitch Books and Records and business of Stitch for all periods prior to the 
Closing. The mere fact of such examination or investigation by USTT or its 
representatives, however, shall not, of itself, affect the representations, 
warranties or covenants hereunder of either Stitch or a Stockholder, unless USTT 
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has obtained actual knowledge as a result of such investigation or examination 
which is contrary to any such representation, warranty, or covenant. From and 
after the date hereof, USTT shall have the right, on reasonable prior notice, to 
have one or more of its representatives present on the business premises of 
Stitch during normal business hours. 
 
                           C. Stitch shall not, without first obtaining the 
written consent of USTT, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or 
delayed, taking into account Stitch's financial condition: (1) make any 
commitment, or enter into any transaction, which materially and adversely 
affects its business; (2) enter into any agreement with respect to or affecting 
its business, other than in the ordinary and usual course of its business, which 
does not terminate or is not terminable without penalty by Stitch prior to the 
Closing; (3) further encumber, lien or grant a security interest in any of its 
assets; (4) make any loans or advances or assume, guarantee, endorse or 
otherwise become responsible for the obligations of any other person or entity 
which would affect in any manner its business; (5) cancel, amend or terminate 
any existing agreement relating in any manner to the business, except in the 
ordinary and usual course of its business or as otherwise required by this 
Agreement; (6) enter into or terminate any contract, agreement, plan, or lease, 
or make any change in any of its contracts, agreements, plans or leases, other 
than in the ordinary and usual course of its business; (7) make any changes in 
its authorized, issued or outstanding capital stock, and make no amendment to or 
change its Certificate of Incorporation or By-laws; (8) not dispose of or agree 
to dispose of, any assets, real, personal, or intangible, except in the ordinary 
course of business; (9) make no change to any of its contracts with, nor enter 
into any agreements granting any additional benefits to, any director, employee, 
Stockholder, or consultant; and (10) not declare, set aside, make provision for 
payment, or pay, any dividends on its capital stock. 
 
                           D. Stitch will, through the Effective Time, keep in 
force and undiminished its existing insurance in connection with its business. 
Prior to Closing, all risk of loss, damage or destruction to all or part of its 
business shall be borne exclusively by Stitch. 
 
                           E. The Stockholders shall not transfer, assign, 
encumber, hypothecate, sell, or transfer any interest whatsoever in any of the 
Stitch Stock. 
 
                  3.2 USTT and USA Acquisition covenant and agree that from and 
after the date of the execution and delivery of this Agreement and until the 
Effective Time: 
 
                           A. USTT shall give to the Stitch representatives 
listed in Schedule 6 ("Stitch Nominees") full access during normal business 
hours, and on reasonable prior notice, and with the prior consent of USTT, to 
the books, records, agreements, and documents of USTT. The mere fact of such 
examination or investigation by Stitch Nominees, however, shall not, of itself, 
affect the representations, warranties or covenants hereunder of USTT, unless 
the Stitch Nominee has obtained actual knowledge as a result of such 
investigation or examination which is contrary to any such representation, 
warranty, or covenant. From and after the date hereof, and with the prior 
consent of USTT, Stitch Nominees shall have the right, on reasonable prior 
notice to be present on the business premises of USTT during normal business 
hours. 
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                           B. Prior to the Effective Time, USA Acquisition shall 
not conduct any business or make any other investments and shall not have any 
assets (other than a de minimis amount of cash paid to USA Acquisition for the 
issuance of the initial shares of stock to USTT) or liabilities. 
 
                  3.3 Continued Charter/ By-Law Indemnification. 
 
                           (a) From and after the Effective Time, the Surviving 
Corporation will fulfill and honor in all respects the obligations of Stitch 
pursuant to any indemnification provisions under Stitch's Certificate of 
Incorporation or By-Laws as each is in effect on the date hereof (the persons to 
be indemnified pursuant to the provisions referred to in this Section 3.3 shall 
be referred to herein as, collectively, the "Section 3.3 Indemnified Parties"), 
provided, however, that in no event shall USTT or the Surviving Corporation be 
required to indemnify any of the Section 3.3 Indemnified Parties for any amount 
paid by any of the Stockholders under Section 8.1.A or otherwise to USTT under 
this Agreement. The Certificate of Incorporation and By-Laws of the Surviving 
Corporation shall contain provisions with respect to indemnification and 
exculpation from liability set forth in Stitch's Certificate of Incorporation 
and By-Law as in effect on the date of this Agreement, which provisions shall 
not be amended, repealed or otherwise modified for a period of two (2) years 
after the Effective Time in any manner that would adversely affect the rights 
thereunder of any Section 3.3 Indemnified Party. 
 
                           (b) This Section 3.3 shall survive consummation of 
the Merger at the Effective Time, is intended to be for the benefit of, and 
enforceable by, each Section 3.3 Indemnified Party and such Section 3.3 
Indemnified Party's heirs and representatives, and shall be binding on all 
successors and assigns of the Surviving Corporation. 
 
                  3.4 Director's and Officer's Insurance. For a period of three 
(3) years after the Effective Time, the Surviving Corporation shall cause to be 
maintained in effect policies of directors' and officers' liability insurance 
for Stitch providing coverage equal in coverage and amount to that maintained by 
Stitch at the Effective Time with respect to matters involving Stitch arising on 
or before the Effective Time. In lieu thereof, the Surviving Corporation or USTT 
may substitute therefor policies of at least the same coverage and amounts 
containing terms and conditions that are no less advantageous, and which 
coverages and amounts shall be no less than the coverages and amounts provided 
at that time for USTT's directors and officers, so long as such substitution 
does not result in lapses of coverage. The cost to the Surviving Corporation or 
USTT, as the case may be, of such insurance shall not exceed $10,000 per annum, 
provided, that any amount in excess of such amount shall be paid for by the 
Stitch directors and officers. Following the three year period referred to 
above, the Surviving Corporation or USTT, as the case may be, shall maintain 
such policy in effect for up to an additional three years if all of the costs 
thereof are paid for by the Stitch directors and officers. The insurance policy 
shall provide that, if such insurance is to be canceled or materially changed 
for any reason whatsoever, such insurer will promptly notify the Stockholders 
and such cancellation or change shall not be effective as to the Stockholders 
for at least thirty (30) days after receipt by the Stockholders of such notice 
(at their respective addresses, as provided to the insurer), unless the effect 
of such change is to extend or increase coverage under the policy; and the 
Stockholders will have the right (but not the obligation) at their election to 
remedy any default in the payment of premiums within thirty (30) days of notice 
from the insurer of such default. 
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                  3.5 Further Assistance. From and after the Closing, the 
Stockholders shall, at no cost or expense to the Surviving Corporation or USTT, 
furnish all financial information reasonably necessary for, and shall cooperate 
with USTT with respect to, the preparation after the date of Closing of such 
financial statements relating to Stitch as USTT is required to prepare, provided 
that all audit and related costs shall be borne by USTT. 
 
                                    SECTION 4 
                           USTT SHAREHOLDERS' MEETING 
 
         In accordance with its Articles of Incorporation, By-laws, and the 
Pennsylvania Business Corporation Law of 1988 ("BCL"), the Board of Directors of 
USTT has called for and approved a special meeting of its shareholders (such 
meeting and any adjournments or postponements thereof shall be referred to as 
the "Shareholders' Meeting") for 10:00 a.m., on May 10, 2002 for the purpose of 
among other matters considering and voting upon a proposal to increase the 
number of authorized shares of USTT Common Stock to 150,000,000 ("Proposal"). 
USTT shall recommend to its shareholders the approval of the Proposal and shall 
solicit proxies from its shareholders in favor of the Proposal. The record date 
of the Shareholders' Meeting is March 22, 2002. Promptly after the execution and 
delivery of this Agreement by all parties, USTT shall forward to all 
shareholders entitled to notice of and to vote at the Shareholders' Meeting an 
appropriate proxy statement and proxy. 
 
                                    SECTION 5 
                             USTT BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
         Prior to the Effective Time, the Bylaws of USTT shall be amended to 
expand the size of the USTT board of directors to up to ten (10) members. As of 
the Effective Time, the three (3) persons who have been selected by Stitch and 
who are listed in Schedule 5 hereto shall be appointed to the Board of Directors 
of USTT. In no event shall the Board of Directors of USTT exceed ten (10) 
persons following the Effective Time. No later than December 31, 2002, one (1) 
of the Directors of USTT who was serving on the Board of Directors of USTT 
immediately prior to the Effective Time shall resign and the USTT Board of 
Directors shall thereafter consist of nine (9) members. Thereafter, for a period 
of three years, subject to its fiduciary duties, the Board of Directors of USTT 
shall take all actions necessary to nominate (and to submit such nomination to 
the shareholders of USTT for approval) the three persons selected by Stitch for 
reelection upon the termination of his initial term on the USTT Board of 
Directors and the six persons selected by USTT for reelection upon the 
termination of his term on the USTT Board of Directors. 
 
                                    SECTION 6 
                              CONDITIONS PRECEDENT 
 
                  6.1 Conditions to the Merger Relating to USTT and USA 
Acquisition. The obligation of USTT and USA Acquisition to close under this 
Agreement is subject the satisfaction of the following conditions precedent (all 
or any of which may be waived, in whole or in part, in writing by USTT and USA 
Acquisition in their sole discretion) on or prior to the date of Closing and 
prior to the Effective Time: 
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                           A. Representations and Warranties. Each of the 
representations and warranties herein made by the Stitch and the Stockholders 
shall be true in all material respects at the Effective Time as if made at, as 
of, and with respect to the Effective Time, and the covenants, agreements and 
obligations to be performed by the Stockholders or Stitch at or before the 
Effective Time pursuant to this Agreement shall have been so performed in all 
material respects. At the Effective Time, the Stockholders and Stitch will 
furnish a certificate to USTT and USA Acquisition, dated as of the date of 
Closing, executed by the Stockholders and by Stitch's principal executive 
officer and principal financial officer and by Stitch, to the effect set forth 
in this section and as to any other matters reasonably requested by USTT. 
 
                           B. Regulatory Consents, Authorizations. The 
Stockholders and Stitch shall have obtained all permits, consents, waivers from 
and approvals of, and made filings and registrations with any federal, state and 
local governmental board, commission, authority or other regulatory body which 
are required for the consummation by each of them of the transactions 
contemplated on their respective parts hereby. 
 
                           C. Corporate Resolutions. Stitch shall have taken all 
corporate action necessary to approve this Agreement and the transactions 
contemplated hereby and shall have delivered to USTT certified copies of the 
resolutions of the meetings of the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Stitch 
approving and adopting this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby. 
 
                           D. Consents, Waivers, etc. The Stockholders and 
Stitch shall have delivered to USTT all consents, waivers and authorizations 
necessary to permit the Merger to be consummated without any violation of, or 
the acceleration of any indebtedness under, or the termination of, any agreement 
to which Stitch is a party, including but not limited to those agreements set 
forth in Schedule 2.1(D) and 2.1(E) . 
 
                           E. Legal Actions. There is no action, suit, 
proceeding, claim, arbitration or investigation before any court, arbitration 
tribunal, administrative agency or commission or other governmental or 
regulatory authority or agency which shall be pending or threatened wherein an 
unfavorable judgment, order, decree, stipulation or injunction would (i) prevent 
consummation of any of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, (ii) 
cause any of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement to be rescinded 
following consummation, or (iii) have a material adverse effect on Stitch, and 
no such judgment, order, decree, stipulation or injunction shall be in effect. 
 
                  6.2 Conditions Precedent to the Merger Relating to Stitch and 
the Stockholders. The obligation of Stitch and the Stockholders to close under 
this Agreement is subject to the satisfaction of the following conditions 
precedent (all or any of which may be waived, in whole or in part, in writing by 
Stitch and the Stockholders in their sole discretion) on or prior to the date of 
Closing and prior to the Effective Time: 
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                           A. Representations and Warranties. Each of the 
representations and warranties herein made by USTT and USA Acquisition shall be 
true in all material respects at the effective time as if made at, as of, and 
with respect to the Effective Time, and the covenants, obligations and 
agreements to be performed by USTT and USA Acquisition at or before the 
Effective Time pursuant to this Agreement shall have been so performed in all 
material respects. At the Effective Time, USTT and USA Acquisition shall furnish 
a certificate to the Stockholders and Stitch dated the date of Closing, executed 
by the principal executive officer and principal financial officer of USTT and 
of USA Acquisition to the effect set forth in the first sentence of this 
section. 
 
                           B. Regulatory Consents, Authorizations. USTT and USA 
Acquisition shall have obtained all permits, consents, waivers from and 
approvals of, and made filings and registrations with any federal, state and 
local governmental board, commission, authority or other regulatory body which 
are required for the consummation by it of the transactions contemplated on its 
part hereby. 
 
                           C. Corporate Resolutions . USTT and USA Acquisition 
shall have taken all corporate action necessary to approve this Agreement and 
the transactions contemplated hereby, and shall have delivered to Stitch 
certified copies of the resolutions of the Board of Directors of USTT and the 
Board of Directors of USA Acquisition approving and adopting this Agreement and 
the transactions contemplated hereby. 
 
                           D. Consents. Stitch shall have obtained (and shall 
have provided copies thereof to the USTT) all of the waivers, permits, consents, 
approvals or other authorizations, and effected all of the registrations, 
filings and notices, referred to in Section 2.1(G) which are required on the 
part of Stitch. 
 
                           E. Legal Actions. There is no action, suit, 
proceeding, claim, arbitration or investigation before any court, arbitration 
tribunal, administrative agency or commission or other governmental or 
regulatory authority or agency which shall be pending or threatened wherein an 
unfavorable judgment, order, decree, stipulation or injunction would (i) prevent 
consummation of any of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, or (ii) 
cause any of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement to be rescinded 
following consummation, and no such judgment, order, decree, stipulation or 
injunction shall be in effect. 
 
                                    SECTION 7 
                            NEGOTIATIONS WITH OTHERS 
 
         From and after the date hereof and until the Effective Time or earlier 
termination of this Agreement, other than with USTT, neither Stitch nor the 
Stockholders, shall, directly or indirectly, solicit, encourage, entertain, 
participate in, or initiate, any discussions, negotiations, or agreements for 
the purpose of disposing of or transferring all or any portion of Stitch's 
assets, or the merger, consolidation, liquidation, sale of stock, or any similar 
transactions involving Stitch or its Stockholders. From and after the date 
hereof, Stitch and the Stockholders shall negotiate exclusively with USTT and 
shall not discuss with any person or entity other than USTT in any manner 
whatsoever any of the matters referred to in the prior sentence. From and after 
the date hereof, Stitch and the Stockholders shall promptly communicate to USTT 
the terms of any such acquisition proposal or offer that Stitch or a Stockholder 
receives from any person or entity other than USTT. 
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                                    SECTION 8 
                                 INDEMNIFICATION 
 
                  8.1      Indemnification. 
 
                           A. From and after the date hereof, the Stockholders, 
jointly and not severally, in proportion to their interests in the USTT Stock 
held under the Escrow Agreement, hereby agree to indemnify and hold harmless 
each of USTT, the Surviving Company, and USA Acquisition and their respective 
employees, directors, officers, shareholders, agents, successors, heirs and 
personal representatives, from and against any and all Losses (as hereinafter 
defined) incurred or suffered by USTT, USA Acquisition, or the Surviving 
Company, or any of their respective shareholders, employees, directors, or 
agents, arising out of, resulting from, relating to, or in connection with: (a) 
any breach or failure to perform by Stitch or the Stockholders of any of the 
terms of this Agreement; or (b) any inaccuracy, misrepresentation or false or 
misleading statement of Stitch or any Stockholder contained in any warranty or 
representation of Stitch or any Stockholder in this Agreement or any document 
delivered by Stitch or any Stockholder pursuant to this Agreement. 
 
                           B. From and after the date hereof, USTT hereby agrees 
to indemnify and hold harmless each of Stitch and the Stockholders and their 
respective employees, directors, officers, shareholders, agents, successors, 
heirs and personal representatives, from and against any and all Losses (as 
hereinafter defined) incurred or suffered by Stitch or the Stockholders, or any 
of their respective shareholders, employees, directors, or agents, arising out 
of, resulting from, relating to, or in connection with: (a) any breach or 
failure to perform by USTT or USA Acquisition of any of the terms of this 
Agreement; or (b) any inaccuracy, misrepresentation or false or misleading 
statement of USTT or USA Acquisition contained in any warranty or representation 
of USTT or USA Acquisition in this Agreement or any document delivered by USTT 
or USA Acquisition pursuant to this Agreement. 
 
                  8.2 Definition of "Losses". For purposes of this Agreement, 
"Losses" shall mean any and all claims, liabilities, suits, actions, demands, 
deficiencies, charges, penalties, fines, interest, damages, losses, costs, or 
expenses (including reasonable attorneys' fees, financial advisor fees, expert 
fees, and court costs) of every kind and nature, incurred by the Indemnified 
Party (as defined below), as a result of Section 8.1.A or 8.1.B, as the case may 
be. 
 
                  8.3      Indemnification Claims. 
 
                           A. A party entitled, or seeking to assert rights, to 
indemnification under this Section 8 (an "Indemnified Party") shall give written 
notification to the party from whom indemnification is sought (an "Indemnifying 
Party") of the commencement of any suit or proceeding relating to a third party 
claim for which indemnification pursuant to this Section 8 may be sought. Such 
notification shall be given within 20 business days after receipt by the 
Indemnified Party of notice of such suit or proceeding, and shall describe in 
reasonable detail (to the extent known by the 
 
                                       29 
 



 
 
 
 
Indemnified Party) the facts constituting the basis for such suit or proceeding 
and the amount of the claimed damages; provided, however, that no delay on the 
part of the Indemnified Party in notifying the Indemnifying Party shall relieve 
the Indemnifying Party of any liability or obligation hereunder except to the 
extent of any damage or liability caused by or arising out of such failure. 
Within 20 days after delivery of such notification, the Indemnifying Party may, 
upon written notice thereof to the Indemnified Party, assume control of the 
defense of such suit or proceeding with counsel reasonably satisfactory to the 
Indemnified Party; provided that (i) the Indemnifying Party may only assume 
control of such defense if (A) the Indemnifying Party acknowledges in writing to 
the Indemnified Party that any damages, fines, costs or other liabilities that 
may be assessed against the Indemnified Party in connection with such suit or 
proceeding constitute Losses for which the Indemnified Party shall be 
indemnified pursuant to this Section 8 and (B) the amount of Losses claimed due 
are less than or equal to the amount of Losses for which the Indemnifying Party 
is liable under this Section 8 and (ii) the Indemnifying Party may not assume 
control of the defense of a suit or proceeding involving criminal liability or 
in which equitable relief is sought against the Indemnified Party. If the 
Indemnifying Party does not so assume control of such defense, the Indemnified 
Party shall control such defense. The party not controlling such defense (the 
"Non-controlling Party") may participate therein at such party's own expense; 
provided that if the Indemnifying Party assumes control of such defense and the 
Indemnified Party reasonably concludes that the Indemnifying Party and the 
Indemnified Party have conflicting interests or different defenses available 
with respect to such suit or proceeding, the reasonable fees and expenses of 
counsel to the Indemnified Party shall be considered "Losses" for purposes of 
this Agreement. The party controlling such defense (the "Controlling Party") 
shall keep the Non-controlling Party advised of the status of such suit or 
proceeding and the defense thereof and shall consider in good faith 
recommendations made by the Non-controlling Party with respect thereto. The 
Non-controlling Party shall furnish the Controlling Party with such information 
as it may have with respect to such suit or proceeding (including copies of any 
summons, complaint or other pleading which may have been served on such party 
and any written claim, demand, invoice, billing or other document evidencing or 
asserting the same) and shall otherwise cooperate with and assist the 
Controlling Party in the defense of such suit or proceeding. The Indemnifying 
Party shall not agree to any settlement of, or the entry of any judgment arising 
from, any such suit or proceeding without the prior written consent of the 
Indemnified Party, which shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed; provided 
that the consent of the Indemnified Party shall not be required if the 
Indemnifying Party agrees in writing to pay any amounts payable pursuant to such 
settlement or judgment and such settlement or judgment includes a complete 
release of the Indemnified Party from further liability and has no other adverse 
effect on the Indemnified Party. The Indemnified Party shall not agree to any 
settlement of, or the entry of any judgment arising from, any such suit or 
proceeding without the prior written consent of the Indemnifying Party, which 
shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. 
 
                           B. In order to seek indemnification under this 
Section 8, an Indemnified Party shall give written notification (a "Claim 
Notice") to the Indemnifying Party which contains (i) a description and the 
amount (the "Claimed Amount") of any Losses incurred or reasonably expected to 
be incurred by the Indemnified Party, (ii) a statement that the Indemnified 
Party is entitled to indemnification under this Section 8 for such Losses and a 
reasonable explanation of the basis therefor, and (iii) a demand for payment (in 
the manner provided in paragraph (c) below) in 
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the amount of such Losses. The Indemnified Party shall also deliver a copy of 
the Claim Notice to the Escrow Agent. 
 
                           C. Within 20 days after delivery of a Claim Notice, 
the Indemnifying Party shall deliver to the Indemnified Party a written response 
(the "Response") in which the Indemnifying Party shall elect one of the 
following: (i) agree that the Indemnified Party is entitled to receive all of 
the Claimed Amount (in which case the Response shall be accompanied by a payment 
by the Indemnifying Party to the Indemnified Party of the Claimed Amount, as 
provided in and subject to Section 8.6 hereof, provided that if the Indemnified 
Party is seeking to enforce any such claim hereunder pursuant to the Escrow 
Agreement, the Indemnifying Party and the Indemnified Party shall deliver to the 
Escrow Agent, within three days following the delivery of the Response, a 
written notice executed by both parties instructing the Escrow Agent to 
distribute to USTT such number of Escrow Shares as have an aggregate Merger 
Value (as defined below) equal to the Claimed Amount) ; or (ii) agree that the 
Indemnified Party is entitled to receive part, but not all, of the Claimed 
Amount (the "Agreed Amount") (in which case the Response shall be accompanied by 
a payment by the Indemnifying Party to the Indemnified Party of the Agreed 
Amount, as provided in and subject to Section 8.6 hereof, provided that if the 
Indemnified Party is seeking to enforce any such claim pursuant to the Escrow 
Agreement, the Indemnifying Party and the Indemnified Party shall deliver to the 
Escrow Agent, within three days following the delivery of the Response, a 
written notice executed by both parties instructing the Escrow Agent to 
distribute to USTT such number of Escrow Shares as have an aggregate Merger 
Value equal to the Agreed Amount); or (iii) dispute that the Indemnified Party 
is entitled to receive any of the Claimed Amount. If the Indemnifying Party in 
the Response disputes its liability for all or part of the Claimed Amount, the 
Indemnifying Party and the Indemnified Party shall follow the procedures set 
forth in Section 8.3(D) for the resolution of such dispute (a "Dispute"). 
 
                           D. During the 60-day period following the delivery of 
a Response that reflects a Dispute, the Indemnifying Party and the Indemnified 
Party shall use good faith efforts to resolve the Dispute. If the Dispute is not 
resolved within such 60-day period, the Indemnifying Party and the Indemnified 
Party shall discuss in good faith the submission of the Dispute to a mutually 
acceptable alternative dispute resolution procedure (which may be non-binding or 
binding upon the parties, as they agree in advance) (the "ADR Procedure"). In 
the event the Indemnifying Party and the Indemnified Party agree upon an ADR 
Procedure, such parties shall, in consultation with the chosen dispute 
resolution service (the "ADR Service"), promptly agree upon a format and 
timetable for the ADR Procedure, agree upon the rules applicable to the ADR 
Procedure, and promptly undertake the ADR Procedure. The provisions of this 
Section 8.3(D) shall not obligate the Indemnifying Party and the Indemnified 
Party to pursue an ADR Procedure or prevent either such party from pursuing the 
Dispute in a court of competent jurisdiction; provided that, if the Indemnifying 
Party and the Indemnified Party agree to pursue an ADR Procedure, neither the 
Indemnifying Party nor the Indemnified Party may commence litigation or seek 
other remedies with respect to the Dispute prior to the completion of such ADR 
Procedure. Any ADR Procedure undertaken by the Indemnifying Party and the 
Indemnified Party shall be considered a compromise negotiation for purposes of 
federal and state rules of evidence, and all statements, offers, opinions and 
disclosures (whether written or oral) made in the course of the ADR Procedure by 
or on behalf of the Indemnifying Party, the Indemnified Party or the ADR Service 
shall be treated as confidential 
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and, where appropriate, as privileged work product. Such statements, offers, 
opinions and disclosures shall not be discoverable or admissible for any 
purposes in any litigation or other proceeding relating to the Dispute (provided 
that this sentence shall not be construed to exclude from discovery or admission 
any matter that is otherwise discoverable or admissible). The fees and expenses 
(including any advances thereof) of any ADR Service used by the Indemnifying 
Party and the Indemnified Party shall be shared equally by the Indemnifying 
Party and the Indemnified Party. If the Indemnified Party is seeking to enforce 
the claim that is the subject of the Dispute pursuant to the Escrow Agreement, 
the Indemnifying Party and the Indemnified Party shall deliver to the Escrow 
Agent, promptly following the resolution of the Dispute (whether by mutual 
agreement, pursuant to an ADR Procedure, as a result of a judicial decision or 
otherwise), a written notice executed by both parties instructing the Escrow 
Agent as to what (if any) portion of the Escrow Shares shall be distributed to 
USTT and/or the Stockholders (which notice shall be consistent with the terms of 
the resolution of the Dispute). 
 
                           E. Notwithstanding the other provisions of this 
Section 8.3, if a third party asserts (other than by means of a lawsuit) that an 
Indemnified Party is liable to such third party for a monetary or other 
obligation which may constitute or result in Losses for which such Indemnified 
Party may be entitled to indemnification pursuant to this Section 8, and such 
Indemnified Party reasonably determines that it has a valid business reason to 
fulfill such obligation, then (i) such Indemnified Party shall be entitled to 
satisfy such obligation after consultation with the Indemnifying Party but 
without consent from the Indemnifying Party, (ii) such Indemnified Party may 
subsequently make a claim for indemnification in accordance with the provisions 
of this Section 8, and (iii) such Indemnified Party shall be reimbursed, in 
accordance with the provisions of this Section 8, for any such Losses for which 
it is entitled to indemnification pursuant to this Section 8 (subject to the 
right of the Indemnifying Party to dispute the Indemnified Party's entitlement 
to indemnification, or the amount for which it is entitled to indemnification, 
under the terms of this Section 8). 
 
                  8.4. Indemnification by Successors. The respective 
indemnification obligations of the parties as set forth in this Section 8 shall 
be binding on the parties and their respective heirs, personal representatives, 
successors and assigns. 
 
 
                  8.5 Survival. All representations, warranties and covenants 
contained in this Agreement shall (a) survive the Closing and any investigation 
at any time made by or on behalf of any party and (b) shall expire on the date 
one year following the Closing (except for Sections 3.3 and 3.4 which shall 
survive for three years). If an Indemnified Party delivers to an Indemnifying 
Party, before expiration of a representation or warranty, either a Claim Notice 
based upon a breach of such representation or warranty, or a notice that, as a 
result a legal proceeding instituted by or written claim made by a third party, 
the party reasonably expects to incur Losses as a result of a breach of such 
representation or warranty (an "Expected Claim Notice") , then such 
representation or warranty shall continue to survive, but only for purposes of 
the matter(s) specified in such notice, beyond the date which is one year 
following the Closing until the resolution of the matter(s) covered by such 
notice. If the legal proceeding or written claim with respect to which an 
Expected Claim Notice has been given is definitively withdrawn or resolved in 
favor of the Indemnified Party, the Indemnified 
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Party shall promptly so notify the Indemnifying Party; and if the Indemnified 
Party has delivered a copy of the Expected Claim Notice to the Escrow Agent and 
Escrow Shares have been retained in escrow after the Termination Date (as 
defined in the Escrow Agreement) with respect to such Expected Claim Notice, the 
Indemnifying Party and the Indemnified Party shall promptly deliver to the 
Escrow Agent a written notice executed by both parties instructing the Escrow 
Agent to distribute such retained Escrow Shares to the Stockholders in 
accordance with the terms of the Escrow Agreement. 
 
                  8.6 Limitations. 
 
                           A. Except as provided in Section 8.6(E) below, (i) 
the liability of USTT for Losses under this Section 8 shall be limited to an 
amount equal to the Merger Value (as defined below) of the Escrow Shares held by 
the Escrow Agent pursuant to the Escrow Agreement, payable not in cash, but by 
delivering such number of additional shares of USTT Stock as equals the amount 
of USTT's liability for any such Losses divided by the Merger Value, (ii) the 
liability of the Stockholders for Losses under this Section 8 shall be limited 
to the Escrow Shares held by the Escrow Agent pursuant to the Escrow Agreement, 
(iii) USTT shall be liable under this Section 8 for only that portion of the 
aggregate Losses for which it would otherwise be liable which exceeds U.S. 
$100,000, and (iv) the Stockholders shall be liable under this Section 8 for 
only that portion of the aggregate Losses for which they would, jointly and 
severally, otherwise be liable which exceeds U.S. $100,000. For purposes of this 
Section, "Merger Value" shall mean the average of the closing prices of the USTT 
Stock for each of the ten (10) business days preceding Closing. 
 
                           B. The Escrow Agreement is intended to secure the 
indemnification obligations of the Stockholders under this Agreement and, except 
as provided in Section 8.6(E) below, shall be the exclusive means for USTT to 
collect any Losses for which it is entitled to indemnification under this 
Section 8. 
 
                           C. After the Closing, except as provided in Section 
8.6(E) below, the rights of the Indemnified Parties under this Section 8 and the 
Escrow Agreement shall be the exclusive remedy of the parties with respect to 
all claims resulting from or relating to any of the matters referred to in 
Section 8.1.A or 8.1.B of this Agreement, as the case may be. 
 
                           D. No Stockholder shall have any right of 
contribution against Stitch or the Surviving Company with respect to any breach 
by Stitch of any of its representations, warranties, covenants or agreements. 
 
                           E. Notwithstanding anything in this Section 8 to the 
contrary, the limitations contained in this Section 8.6 shall not apply to any 
claims by any Indemnified Party based on (i) any breach by USTT of Section 2.3 
(E); or (ii) any breach by the Stockholders of Section 2.2.A; or (iii) any fraud 
or intentional misrepresentation; and neither USTT's nor any Stockholder's 
liability for any such claims shall be limited to the amounts set forth in this 
Section 8.6 or to the Merger Value of the Escrow Shares, and this Section 8 
shall not be the exclusive means for the Indemnified Party to enforce such 
rights. 
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                                    SECTION 9 
                                  MISCELLANEOUS 
 
 
                  9.1 Termination. This Agreement may be terminated and the 
Merger abandoned at any time prior to the Effective Time whether before or after 
the Shareholders' Meeting, in writing as follows: 
 
                           A. By mutual action of the Board of Directors of 
Stitch and USTT. 
 
                           B. By USTT and USA Acquisition: 
 
                                    1. If the conditions set forth in Section 
6.1 hereof shall not have been complied with or performed in any material 
respect and such noncompliance or nonperformance shall not have been cured or 
eliminated (or by its nature cannot be cured or eliminated) by Stitch or the 
Stockholders on or before 5:00 p.m., Philadelphia time, on May 17, 2002. 
 
                                    2. If the USTT shareholders do not approve 
the Proposal at the Shareholders' Meeting or if the Shareholders' Meeting is not 
duly convened on or before the close of business on May 17, 2002. Upon 
termination of this Agreement by USTT and USA Acquisition pursuant to this 
Article 9.1.B.2, USTT shall within five business days deliver to Stitch a cash 
payment of $200,000; provided, however, that the amount shall be reduced and 
offset by any amounts then due to USTT by Stitch under the Promissory Note dated 
of even date herewith by Stitch, as maker, in favor of USTT, as payee, in the 
principal amount of $200,000. 
 
                           C. By Stitch and the Stockholders: 
 
                                    1. If the conditions set forth in Section 
6.2 hereof shall not have been complied with or performed in any material 
respect and such noncompliance or nonperformance shall not have been cured or 
eliminated (or by its nature cannot be cured or eliminated) by USTT or USA 
Acquisition on or before 5:00 p.m., Philadelphia time, on May 17, 2002. 
 
                                    2. If the USTT shareholders do not approve 
the Proposal at the Shareholders' Meeting or if the Shareholders' Meeting is not 
duly convened on or before the close of business on May 17, 2002. Upon 
termination of this Agreement by Stitch and the Stockholders pursuant to this 
Article 9.1.C.2, USTT shall within five business days deliver to Stitch a cash 
payment of $200,000; provided, however, that the amount shall be reduced and 
offset by any amounts then due to USTT by Stitch under the Promissory Note dated 
of even date herewith by Stitch, as maker, in favor of USTT, as payee, in the 
principal amount of $200,000. 
 
In the event of the termination of this Agreement, this Agreement shall become 
void and have no effect, and no party hereto shall have any liability to any 
other party hereto, except for the obligations of USTT, if any, under Section 
9.1.B.2 or 9.1.C.2, and except that any cause of action or claim for willful 
breach of this Agreement which may otherwise exist shall survive and shall not 
be extinguished or limited in any manner whatsoever. 
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                  9.2 Binding Effect, Benefit. This Agreement and the rights and 
obligations of USTT, USA Acquisition, the Stockholders, or Stitch hereunder 
shall not be assigned by any party to any third party, except with the written 
consent of all the other parties and such other consents as may be required. 
This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
hereto and their respective directors and shareholders and their permitted 
successors and assigns. Nothing in this Agreement expressed or implied, is 
intended to confer upon any person, other than the parties hereto and their 
respective directors or shareholders and their permitted successors and assigns, 
any rights or remedies under or by reason of this Agreement, and except as 
otherwise provided herein there are no third party beneficiaries of this 
Agreement. 
 
                  9.3 Notices. All notices, requests, demands, waivers, and 
other communications required or permitted to be given under this Agreement 
shall be in writing and shall be deemed given or served if in writing and sent 
by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, to the respective party or 
parties at the following addresses: 
 
                  If to USTT or USA Acquisition: 
 
                           USA Technologies, Inc. 
                           200 Plant Avenue 
                           Wayne, PA 19087 
                           Attn: George R. Jensen, Jr., Chairman and CEO 
 
                  With copy to: 
 
                           Lurio & Associates, P.C. 
                           Suite 2340 
                           2005 Market Street 
                           Philadelphia, PA 19103 
                           Attn: Douglas M. Lurio, Esquire 
 
                  If to Stitch or the Stockholders (other than Maytag Holdings): 
 
                           Stitch Networks Corporation 
                           500 North Walnut Street 
                           Kennett Square, PA 19348 
                           Attn: General Counsel 
 
                  If to Maytag Holdings: 
 
                           Maytag Holdings, Inc 
                           c/o Maytag Corporation 
                           403 West Fourth Street North 
                           P.O. Box 39 
                           Newton, Iowa 50208 
                           Attn: General Counsel 
                           Facsimile: (641) 787-8102 
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or to such other address or addresses as any party may designate to the others 
by like notice as set forth above. All such notices, requests, demands, waivers 
and communications shall be deemed to have been received on the third business 
day after the mailing thereof except for a notice of a change of address, which 
shall be effective only upon receipt thereof. 
 
                  9.4 Merger Clause. This Agreement contains the entire 
agreement between the parties hereto with respect to the transactions 
contemplated hereby, supersedes all prior and contemporaneous agreements, 
understandings, negotiations and discussions, whether oral or written, of the 
parties, including but not limited to the letter dated March 15, 2002, between 
Stitch, USTT, and the Stockholders, and provided, however, that except as 
provided otherwise herein, the Mutual Confidentiality Agreement, dated September 
12, 2001, between USTT and Stitch shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
                  9.5 Choice of Law. This Agreement has been executed in the 
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and shall be construed in accordance with the laws 
of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania without regard to its conflict of law rules. 
This Agreement may be executed in any number of copies, each of which shall be 
deemed an original, and all of which together, shall be deemed one and the same 
instrument. 
 
                  9.6 Consent to Jurisdiction. Except as specifically provided 
otherwise in this Agreement, each of the parties hereto irrevocably consents and 
agrees that any legal action or proceeding whatsoever arising out of or in any 
way connected with this Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby shall 
be solely and exclusively commenced, filed, instituted or brought in the state 
or federal courts of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania located in the County of 
Philadelphia, and each of the parties hereto irrevocably submits and accepts 
with regard to any such legal action or proceeding to the jurisdiction of such 
courts. Each of the parties irrevocably consents to service of process out of 
any of the aforementioned courts in any such action or proceeding by the mailing 
of copies thereof by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, to the 
parties hereto, such service to become effective upon mailing. Each of the 
parties hereto hereby irrevocably waive, to the fullest extent permitted by law, 
any objection which any of them may now or hereafter have to the laying of the 
venue of any suit, action or proceeding arising out of or relating to this 
Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby, brought in such Pennsylvania 
courts, and hereby further irrevocably waives any claim, that any such suit, 
action or proceeding brought in such courts, has been brought in an inconvenient 
forum. 
 
                  9.7 Brokers and Finders. USTT, USA Acquisition, Stitch and the 
Stockholders hereby severally represent to each other that except for Technology 
Partners (Holdings) LLC, who has acted on behalf of USTT, no broker or finder 
has been employed or engaged by any of them in connection with the transactions 
contemplated in this Agreement and that except for Technology Partners 
(Holdings) LLC, no broker or finder is entitled to any brokerage or finder's 
fees or other commissions in connection with the proposed transaction; provided, 
however, that USTT shall be responsible for, and shall indemnify and hold 
harmless Stitch and the Stockholders from, any fees, commission or costs due to 
Technology Partners (Holdings),LLC. 
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                  9.8 Expenses. Except as provided in Section 8 and in the 
Escrow Agreement, whether or not the transactions contemplated by this Agreement 
are closed, each party shall bear its or his own expenses in connection with the 
negotiation and closing of this Agreement and the transactions contemplated 
hereby. 
 
                  9.9 Public Announcements. All public announcements relating to 
the transactions contemplated herein may be made by USTT at its discretion, and 
any other public announcements must be approved by USTT in advance. 
 
                  9.10 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in two or 
more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original but all of which 
together shall constitute one and the same instrument. This Agreement may be 
executed by facsimile signature. 
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         IN WITNESS WHEREOF, and intending to be legally bound, each of the 
parties hereto has duly executed this Agreement to evidence its agreement to the 
provisions hereto in their entirety, all on the day and year first above 
written. 
 
                                  USA TECHNOLOGIES, INC. 
 
 
                                  By: /s/ George R. Jensen, Jr. 
                                     ------------------------------ 
                                  Name: George R. Jensen, Jr. 
                                  Title: Chairman and CEO 
 
                                  USA ACQUISITION CORP. 
 
 
                                  By: /s/ George R. Jensen, Jr. 
                                     ------------------------------ 
                                  Name: George R. Jensen, Jr. 
                                   Title: Chairman and CEO 
 
                                  STITCH NETWORKS CORPORATION 
 
 
                                  By: /s/ David H. Goodman 
                                     ---------------------------- 
                                  Name: David H. Goodman 
                                  Title: President and CEO 
 
                                  STOCKHOLDERS: 
 
                                   /s/ David H. Goodman 
                                  --------------------------------- 
                                  DAVID H. GOODMAN 
 
                                  MAYTAG HOLDINGS,  INC. 
 
                                  By: /s/ Roger K. Scholten 
                                     ------------------------------ 
                                  Name:    Roger K. Scholten 
                                  Title: Director 
 
                                  PENNSYLVANIA EARLY STAGE PARTNERS, L.P. 
                                  By: PA-ESP Partners, L.P., its general partner 
                                  By: Pennsylvania Early Stage Partners GP, 
                                        L.L.C., its Manager 
 
                                  By: /s/ Michael G. Bolton 
                                     ------------------------------ 
                                  Name: Michael G. Bolton 
                                  Title: Managing Director 
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         LIST OF EXHIBITS AND SCHEDULES TO AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF MERGER 
 
 
EXHIBIT "A"                Certificate of Merger 
EXHIBIT "B"                Form of Warrant 
EXHIBIT "C"                Lock-Up Agreement 
EXHIBIT "D"                Registration Rights Agreement 
EXHIBIT "E"                Escrow Agreement 
EXHIBIT "F"                Form of USTT Common Stock Option 
 
SCHEDULE 1.10              Options to Purchase Stitch Common Stock 
SCHEDULE 2.1(D)            Conflicts with Instruments 
SCHEDULE 2.1(E)            Violations 
SCHEDULE 2.1(F)            Related Party Obligations 
SCHEDULE 2.1(G)            Governmental Consents 
SCHEDULE 2.1(I)            Financial Statements 
SCHEDULE 2.1(J)            Subsequent Events 
SCHEDULE 2.1(K)            Taxes 
SCHEDULE 2.1(N)            Material Contracts 
SCHEDULE 2.1(O)            Bank Accounts 
SCHEDULE 2.1(P)            Intellectual Property 
SCHEDULE 2.1(Q)            Inventory 
SCHEDULE 2.1(R)            Accounts Receivable 
SCHEDULE 2.1(T)            Insurance 
SCHEDULE 2.1(U)            Employee Benefit Plans 
SCHEDULE 2.1(V)            Labor Relations/Employment Warranties 
SCHEDULE 2.1(W)            Litigation 
SCHEDULE 2.2(A)            Stock Ownership 
SCHEDULE 2.2(J)            Residence 
SCHEDULE 2.3(B)            Capitalization 
SCHEDULE 3.1(A)            Preservation of Business 
SCHEDULE 5                 Additions to USTT Board of Directors 
SCHEDULE 6                 Stockholder Representatives 
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